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I had been employed in

I was not.

•

A. Well, I ~ent to see them

yourself? A

the -- by the labor movement here some months before, and

I was requested to go and see them when they were brought

here from the East.

Q, 1!.ere you not personally interest ed in the case e.g ein~t

the people, who were ch arg ed vli th dymami ting the Times,

~uly 10, 1912. 2 o'clock P.M.

Defendant in court with counsel.

THE COURi': All parties are present, gentlemen; you may

proceed ~ith the cross-examination ofMr Harriman.

Q, Were you not personally interested in that case, and

did you not have personal knowledge of the fact that

ions in regard to your relation to this case, and also to

the case of the People vs. Uc Namara, Schmidt and others.

You have said you were attorney in the case of the People

vs. McNamara ,nth Darrow. You were attorney in that case

before M:r Darrow was, 'were you not? A I don!'t !mOVl when

Mr Darrow vvas anployed.

Q, You appeared for theUCNamaras ,vhen they were first

brought here, did you not? A I did.

Q, You ,rent to see them or did they send for you?

~OB HAH~]~!.AN, on th e at and •

CROSS-EXAMINATION

1!R FREDERICKS: lrr Harriman, I want to ask you some quest-
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Times V,''8S going to be dynamited before it was dynamited?

A I had no knowledge ar the fact before.

Q Do you know a man by the name of Edward Adam Cantrell?

A I do.

Q 1fr Cantrell is a member of th e Socialist party 'wi th

YO'Q.? A He is.

Q And were you in the city of San Luis Obispo in this

state on or about the 1st of october, 1910? I refer

to the same morning, during the early part of which it is

said the Times was blown up? A I \Vas with him and V'1'e

were conducting aseries of meetings together at that

time.

Q Mr Cantrell is some official in the Socialist Party,

or was? A He belongs to the State Executive Party.

Q Did you see Edward Adam Cantrell at San Luis Obispo

on or about that time? A I say, \ve were conducting a

seri es c£ meetings at that tim e.

Q You were there and saw him t here at that time? A I

saw him t here at th at time.

Q That was the next m01'11ing after the Times blew up?

A I saw him on the day after the Times blew up.

Q Were you rooming at a hotel in San Luis Obispo at

that time? A I was.

Q Vhat \,es the name of th at ho tel? A I do not remember.

Q State whether or not on th e 1st day of octOber, 1910,

the day immediately follovling the night or the monling,
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1 it is sai d th e Times building was blown up, you and Edw'ard

2 Adam Cantrell were rooming at Room 1 in the St .Tames Ann ex: ,

3 of the St Andrews Hotel in th e City of San Luis Obispo

4 in this state; that on th e mll1Iming -- on the morning of

5 that day, you met Mr Cantrell on the street in the city

6 of San Luis Obispo, he and you being there alone, and that

7 yous aid to him, "Uy God, Cantrell, the Times building

8 has be.endynami ted and something like 20 people are report-

9 ed ki]ed~ or words to that effect or that in sUbstance,

10 or anything in substance to that effect?

11 J/fR ROGERS: Wait a moment. Obj ECted to as incompetent, ir-

12 relevant and immaterial, and notcaross-examination.

131m FREDERICKS: Going into the relations 0 f this witness

14 to this case and to th e case that vms thEn on trial,

15 your Honor, and this is the first question and is largely.
16 preliminary. If the court has any doubt I will state that

17 the purpose

18 THE COURr: I have very grave doubt.

191m FREDERICES: I vdoll state we prepose to show --

20 ,J.m ROGERS: TO which \'16 obj €Ct, of course, it having been

21 held by the Supreme Con It of this State --

22 MR FREDERICKS: l.'1:ay I finish?

23 UR RO GERS : No. I beg your pardon. To which 'we obj ec t

24 upon the ground that the Supreme COurt of this state --

25 },ffi FREDERICKS: May I finish?

26 1~ cou ill' ; I wi11 hear the obj ec tion.



the reporter.)

j\m FREDERICKS: That question, I vdll state, is largely

for the purpose of identifying the circumstances in the

wi tnes s' mind, if he reTIlemb ers it.

THE COURT: It seems to me you &9 encroaching closely on

sec tion 2051 of th e Code of Civil Froc edure.

],fR FORD: Has your Honor another one of those codes handy?

I just sent up for ours.

THE COURT: You can us e this one.

4208
MR ROGERS: -- that it is improper for the prosecutor to

state in th e record what heexpects to prove, it being, in

a sense, misconduct in that it presents before the jury mat­

ters which are not cognim:,le by them until after th e court

has pmsed upon the questions. I cannot cite

your Honor to th e authority, but I have it in mind and

could produce it very shortly upon looking over my notes.

MR FREDERICYJ3: :r~ information was for th e court in or der

that the court might know to what I was driving.

THE COURT: I think I see what you aredriving at, Captain

Fredericks. I want to set a lit tIe better grasp of that

question. Let t~ reporter read it, first.

1fR FREDERICKS: Th~s first l~estion, of course, does not

gO,really, to the meat of the matter, but it is more of

an identification of the circU1Jlmtances.
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was a distinct crime. There is another matter on trial

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 will state that the witness has stated

personal interest in the matter 'of the transaction of

Th at was the cr ime th ~lt was on tr ial,

that he was not personally interested in the dynami ting

case of the reople vs HcNamara. 1 st9.ted in the beginr'.ing

that my purpose was to inquire of this .'1i tnesB at this time

jurors, and in which we believe the evidence shows, to a

certain extent, at any rate, this witness on the st3.nd

In cross-exan.ining it is necessary now that we should

ass is ted in that tr ibery. He has said that he did not.

tending to ahO'N that he has made statements to the contrary

that he was personally interested in that case, show his

in regard to his. relation to that case. 1 inquired of

hi~ and he said he was not personaJly interested in that

case. 1 am now going to 9.sk him an impeach ing question

br ibing juror s on th e 28th day of November.

now.

it was not the rel:ltion of an attorrey, but that it was

MR. FORD. If the Court please, the section--

THE COURT. That Cltime, however, of blmving up the TilIies

show to the jury what his relation to that case was, that

MR • FREDERI CKS

with which we have charged the defendant with bribing

has given in the light of what we believe it to be from

more damaging relation of a prospective or possible defendult

hirr.self, in order tr::.:t t~ey may weigh tbe te~3timony that he

30 1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

111
12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 I
I

I



1 circumstances.
4210 I

2 MR. FORD· now, if the cour t please, Section 2051 provides

3 that a witness may be impeached by the par ty agains t whom

4 I he was cal1ed--

5 THE COullT. 1 think Captain Fredericks has m~t th~situa-

6 tion, Mr. Ford.•
7 MR. FORD' If your Honor is satisfied, of course, we do not

8 care to ar gu e it.

9 TPE COlJR T. He has answer ed niY ques tion.

10 MR • FORD· 1 was going to argue the law.

11 THE corn T. Pe has, 1 think, presented that as an applicati n

12 to it, and that was the matter in nw mind. Let me see that

13 section again.

14 MR. F'BI:ERICKS. Of course, this question does not bring the

151 matter up, the next question will.

16 THE CO'L"RT. 1 am anticipating it, assuming we will investi-

17 gate it here and get ready, it is bere now in our minds.

18 MR. FORD. CalI ing ycur Honor's at ten tion to Sec tion 1847.

19 THE COT.1P.T. Yes, 1 have section 1847 in rr,y mind too. Yes,

20 1 think under the view Captain Fredericks presents, the

21

22

23

objection is overruled.

MR • ROGERS. Exc ep tion •

MR. 'FREDERI CKS' Q, Pave you in rr,ind the Ciues t ion 7 A

I
Read I

24 the question.

25 THE RKPORTER. \~r. Su·.i th ha.s the question.

26 MR. F?iEDERICKS. 1 can repeat it verbatim, and 1 '11i11

repea tit', \'V i th the idea tba t the objection has been made
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A We were in--

State whetter or

ask you answer that yes orv •• . ' 1 . 11 h t.•if. ~<arr lillan, Wl ave 0

and the same ru1 ing •

THE C'OURT. The san,e objection and the same ruT ing • The

tion, at the till,e and place in question, you thereupon--

A We were in San l,ouis Obiopo, we Were together that day

in the city in the hotel, we did converse concerning the

THE COlffiT· Yes, you may explain.

Q

on the morning oftbat day you met ~lr. Cantrell on the street

in the city of San louis Obispo, in this state, and that

or. the morning it is said the Times Building was blown

up you and Edward Adams Cantrall were rooming at Room 1

in the St James Annex of th e St Andre'ws Hotel

in the said city of San Louis Obispo, you ~nd he being alon ,

and you said to him, "My Cod, C~ntrell, the Times Building

has been dynamited and something like bventy people have

been killed.nor words to that effect or to that purport

'MR. FREDER10KS. Q State whetber or not on the 1st day of

October) 1910, the day imnJediately following the night

no first 0 A No. Now, let me explain.

explos ion. I did not rr;ake such a rem3.rk, bu t we did con-

or effect in substance or to that effect?

verse concerning it, yes.

Q. State whether or not, while still on the straet in ques-

1 will start the question over again:

not while still on tre street in question at the tine
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p)ace in question you thereupon took ~Ilr. Cantrell by the

arrr, and he and you w:cu ked up to your room in said f,otel

and thC:lt you closed the door of said room and turned the

key in the lock and threw yourself into a chair and burst

into a fit of laughter, he and you being there alone, and

after you had ceased laughing and somewhat regr:.ined your
•

composure and still wh ile in your said room in the said

hotel, yeu and Mr. Cantrell being ttere alone, ~r. Cantrell

said to you, "What does it niean?" and you answered, "It

means that the boys ar e on the job," and \!r. Cantr ell says,

"Wbat is that 7 n and that you answer ed, "I t n~e an s that th ey

ar e on Ue job", or words to that effect or that in sub­

stance or language in 6ubst~~ce to that effect?
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1 :M:RROGERS: The same objoction, that it is not cross-

2 examination, collateral, incompetent, irrelevant and im-ma­

3 terial.

8 tion.

4 THE COURT: Obj oction OV' erruled.

5 1m ROGERS: EXception.

6 -"A. No such circumstance ot conversation ever took place

7 between us. Now, you r Honor, I wish to make an explana-

THE COURT: You may.

THE COURT: I think he has a right to make it now.

friends. Our f ri endship remain ed until February of this

:rvrR FREDERICKS: There will be mo re of this, if you vii sh to

A I will make it

After onr visit to SanA

nOYT.

UR FREDERICKS: Certainly.

Luis Obispo to work there, we returned to Los Ang eles·,

we conducted a series of meetings together, and were good

make the EOCplanation at the end --
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18 . year, ~t that time a difi'erenc e arose between

be misunderstood or lmlbiguons in any way' he has a

and if that anS\7er is equivocal and he believes it will

is not entitled to make a statement except in response to

A I ask for the pri-

If the witness has made his an SS'er

.rust a moment, I ·will hear the obj oc tion.

is 1 .The vri tn ESS cnti tl ed to exn a~n an answer·, he
i\. -

questions asked him.

vi1 eg e 0 f t hi s c ou rt

1m FORD: Pardon me just a moment.

THE COU Rl.' :

1m FORD:
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stand and if Mr Cantrell denies that certain relations ex-

yet testified, nor testify com erning that other wit-

to bring that out will be '."Ihen 1,rr Cantrell takes the

If his e;.cplana-

Our point will be this :if th ere is an;ything in

cuti tipate what his explanation is to be.

tion is one that ou,ght not to be in the record:, the cou

ist, couns el will then have a right to recall Mr Harriman

to testify to that matter. At the present time Vie beli are

it is entirely improper, that the only privilege that the

witness has at the present time, is to explain his answer.

THE COUll': I think the witness has a broader privilege

than that, under any circumstances. The court cannot

I

the conduc t 0 fur Cant rell and his relations to Mr Harri-

questions. whatsoever. VJhil e he may desire to explain th e

the motives which prompted :Mr Cantrell in respon se to no

conduct thE? case for thedefense, he isnot allowed here

to attack the motives of some other witness who has not

when we come to it, but a vr.i. tn €ss is not allowed here to

re.ason of l,fr Cantrell's htbstddity, if such there be, it

is not an explanation of· th e anSVler at all, and it can

only be brotl,gh t out on ~edirect examination, if at all,

by question and answer. That is a bridge vIe will cro ss

ness.

man which would color his testimony in any way, the time

to explain that answer; we do not deny that, but this

witness is now going on to testify about somebody else,

he is going on to testify in r ~ard to 1fr Cantrell and
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1 will entertain a motion to strike out. In the meantime,

2 _ I 'will hear his explanation.

3

4

5

MR FORD:.Just a moment, if your Honor please. With re­

gard to the 1 ast remark of the court, as far as striking

evidence out is com erned, the damage may be done.

6 TP.ECOURT: I un:lerstand the effect af tmt. The court

7 will cover that, however, I think.

8 MR FREDERICKS: proceed, then, Mr Harriman. A During

EXecutive BOard of the Socialist Party, in perfect harmony

together. Iwas nominat ed for Mayor. Sine e this alleged

~rose in the party, details of Which I need not both~r you

wi t h, referring to the manag ament of a paper, and since

that time he has become one of my bitterest enemies and

StateStat e Executive Board 0 f the Sociali st Party? A

the following year or year and a half, until February of

this year, we worked on th e State Executive Board, whic h

was mentioned formerly in this testimony.

has threatened to put me behind the bars, and thi~ testi­

mony, as I am informed, is the testimony given before the·

grand jury to that effect; I say, as I was infonned. I

may be mistaken; if I am mista1(en in this respect -- I
that

don't know -- but,~ ";'/e have become enemies since last

February, can be established beyond a qu astion •

conversation, this same man supported me in th e conven­

tion, insisted upon my running. In February, we took dia­

metrically opposite stands in re,.sard to an'issue that
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Q I presume that \'.d.ll be brought in at the prop er time,

A ,rust a moment. And that after this

alleged statement he supported me ine.rery particular,

both in the nomination in the convention ,in the campaign

for the office fChr Y,'hich I"Jas candidate. That is> all.

Q. NOV7, th e opposite stands that you took, ur Harriman,

were a split in the Socialist party over this fact, that

1,rr Cantrell and his followers believed in education of

the peopiie, ancffl the attaining of th eir obj acts through

political actiVity, and you and your faction 'beliwed in

the attaining of those obje cts through violenc e?

that the split?

Isntt



against that a'nd for political action 3.nd we won by prob­

ably two-:thirds or probably three-four t~s in the' convention.!

1 bave alwaye opposed it and am knovm to have s toad agains t

in violence? A Absolutely.

I

A phraseA

. 1 took the pos it ion

A 1 tho~ght you

movernent in France

Sabotage.

that branch of your party thCl.t believes

A

1 guess you will have to explain that.

Agains t '1'1'1': a t 7

tbat is used in the ayndi8alietic

4217

convention only five or six weeks ago on t~e resolution

offered-eon the trade union resolution offered, which 1

was made chair~an to make the report, and this was the

iasuein the resolution. 1 led the opposition against

A All very well 'acquainted with it.

which means--

it e inc e 1 have been i ntl!e movemen t, in every way.

A \:r. Fredericks, to your knowledge 1 have been engaged in

tne propaganda in the socialistic movement for now 23 years

l'havenever changed my pos i tion one io ta, so far as that

particular is concerned, 1 took tbe stand in our national
•

Q That means breaking up machinery?

knew it.

Q. 1 knew it. 1 didn't know whetber tbe jury did or not.

Q Then you oppose

saotage

Q There is a branch that does believe in violence? A

'MR. APPEL. Now, we obj ect-:--

:MR • ROGF.RS. Le t h lUi have h is answer, he wan to an answer.
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treated here in this court room. Anyone who cannot so

it was done as it W3,S done properly.

Q No, 1 asked. you if there Was sucb a branch. 1 didn't

A You have asked we for an explanation.

Pe has asked for the quee tion.MR. ROGERS.

A He has asked for tr:e ques tion.

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 asked the question.

THE COURT. ;:'r. Sr:eriff, you are entirely right. Whenever

MR· FREDETHCKS. ;.!r. Reporter, will you read the last ques­

tion and answer?

is, if 1 may explain, now you bave brought it up.

there is any such conduct such as you have just dealt With.
•

Anyone who cannot repress his tendency to laugh here will

have to leave the room and 1 W ill a tate wha t 1 have s tat ed

treat it better not cowe, because you will be subjected to

that condition and the court will uphold the sheriff if

a very serious occasion, a very solerrn one and is to be so

MR. FREtF.RICKS. You said, "There is, let me explain."

A No, just a loment. 1 did not. 1 said let me explain.

THE COu~T. What is the anawer?

1 don't know t~at we want to go too fuJly into Bocialislli

several times in this particular. The court absolutely

upholds the sher iff in this, wha t he has done. He has put

one man out of the room here because he laughed. This is

MR. FREDERICKS. And tte question was answered, "There is."

but go an.ead.

(Record read. )
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1 ask you for an explanation. I don't want the explanation.

2 If you want to nlake it, go ab ead.

3 A ~Io, sir. Shall 1 make it?

4 TPE COURT. You may make it.

5 MB. FREDF.R10KS· 1 am perfectly willing he should, but not

6 in l' espons e to ..my que s t ion •
•

7 THE COURT· If it is nece:3sary to make it clear he can

8 explain.

9 MR • FREDERICKS. There is such a branch. Now, explaln.

10 A The plilZi tion 1 have taken for t:be last seven years, and

11 over which there has been some con troversy--

12 MR. rRFDERICKS. But, may it please the court, the Witness

13 is not talking to my q use t ion. A 1 am answering your

14 question precisely.

15 un. FREDEB Ie KS . ro, sir. The witness is answer ing what

16 his beliefs are, which he has gone over. My question W:iS,

17 then ther e is such a br a reh and he 6 aid "Ther e is."

18 THE COLlRT. He said, "Ttere is," but that that answer

19 required some ramification and explanation.

20 1J'?. FREDERICKS. ue is going on to g~ive his explanation.

21 TFE rO'LBT. 1 suppose it is typical of tre socialistic

party, is that correct'?

ed your question, and 1 have not yet answered--

It is, and he asked me if 1 did not t:ike a certainA
I

position in favor of that tranch of the party and 1 answer-

22

23

24

25

26 TPE COu'RT' I think he is within his rigr.ts. 1"roceed.

-
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1 A The posi tion that 1 took in the jiP1.tional Convention and

2 have for sever~ years is thio--

3 MR. FRF.DF.RICKS. That is the same matter you testified to

4 a while ago.

5 MR • ROGERS. 1 think the VI i tness ough t to be permi tted to

6 go on •
•

7 TFE COlIDT. Yes, Captain Fredericks.

8 MR. FREDERICKS· Co ahead.

9 A It wont bother me a bit,. if it does it might interrupt

10 the jury.

11
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1 1m FREDERICKS: They are used to it.

2 A I have taken the position that the economic organiza-

action.

party and the Trade-Union movement. I have taken th e

comes an avenue through which that power might be ex-

You have asked for this ex:planation

/
TheSyndicalist move.ment arose

A out of the 1 abor movement.

Hitherto, th~ have been separated, the Socialist. .

W'ell,sabotage.

Violence? A Some do.

ented.

Harriman.

A

position that their separation begets a wealaless on the

part of both of them out of which a hopelessness arises,

and out of the hopelessness men will mandon their organ­

ization, because they have lost their hopes. This

~eparation of these two movements has resulted ina number

of men abandoning the poli tical action and drifting int 0

an organi:mion out of our movement that advocates direct

THE COURT: I think he is \nthin his rights. Proceed, Mr

tion and the political organization of the working classes

should be so closely allied that then each organization be-

in France, the same \~ in England, out of the Trade-Union

movement, likewise men ymo lost hope. ~ust a moment.

1m FORD: .rust a momen t.

1m FREDERICKS: What do you mean by direcct action?
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26
1m ROGERS: NoW, if your Honor please, I object when a man

asks a question and the witness is endeavoring to answer
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1 it, I obj ect to this continual fire of talk which the

2 jury can hear, intending to and calculated to, and made.
3 for the purpose of derogating fram the vlitness' answer.

4 1ffi FREDERICKS: My talk VIas made for the jury h ere and

5 for the court to hear, and for everybody that can hear,

6 to. hear' and went in the record:
'" .

7 . THE COURT: The only thing I heard Captain Fredericks say

8 ves, he had no obj ection except for the time it took.

9 1m ROGERS: The wi tnees ought to be permitted togo on.

10 1.n:R FREDERICKf3: But I think the court should ~imit this

11 somevvhere.

12 THE COURT: It is difficult.

13 MR FREDERICKS: It isn t t responf1<vet 0 rrry question at all.

14 THE COUffil: I think it is. Proceed.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

UR FREDERICKS: If the court thinks so, go ahead. --.-~r

A From the labor movement, when men, wh ere they want to"-!/

use the strike and boycott and do not use their poli tical

power as an organization, this same hopelessness arises

and yon have the result, men drifting into the direct

action. I said, and it has been rrry position, that in order

to overcome this tendency in Ame::'ican, ',va must bring

these movements close together which will result in the

entire power of the class being exerted politically and

economically, and out of that power would spping a hope

25 and out of hope a constructive policy and a sane policy •

...b

26

1 we._h_a_v_e_ma_d_e_t_h_8t_"f_ig_h_t_i_n_o_u_r_l_8_s_t_n_a_t_i_o_n_a_l_co_n-,-v_e_n_t_~-,'o-,n-,-,._-"!--'
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answer.

1.~R FREDERICKS: I asked for nothing 0 f the kind.

favor of direct action or any action that would accom-

for that statement; he asked for it, and he got his

.And

He asked

It vvas

That is all.

A Made a speeoh in

A

this city in which he made the statement that he was in

since that convention, 1"fr Edward Adams Cantrell made a

s~eech in this city --

I led the resolution committee and secured the adoption r;f

the resolution in opposition to those who followed the

other policy, and I have taken this stand for the last

THE COU'Rl': Proceed, 1,fr Harriman.

seven years -- just a moment, one mo re sentenc e.

Q Novl, let's get back to the case.

plish his end, and I shall produce his speech.

taken down in typ~writing.

]m ROGERS: I take an exc eption to that remark.

1m FREDERICKS : Is t hat all?

1

2

3

4
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7

8

9
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13

14

15

16

17

18
_ MR ROGERS: I ecc ept on t he ground it is misconduct, and

Honor please, that the anS'iVer of the witness was within

his rights as testimony, and I take an exception to the

ItUOyv 1 et' s,
The court allowed thati if your

But not responsive to my qnostion, and I

remark.

\nll submit it, if the reporter is here, and vdll read

the question, but I am making no objection to the

lIR FREDERICKS :

get back to t he case. It

I desire my EXception entered in therecord.

25

19

20
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bE



-

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

4224

the wi tn ess.

THE COURi': This was an explanation, merely, of his

answer.

Am FREDERICKS: Mr Harriman, 1 et us c arne back t a the sit-

~ation we were talking about, back to San Luis Obispo

ou the morning after the Times was blo~vn up and back to

the room in the hotel w'hEllre I asked you about your

conversation with 1J[r Cantrell, in which I asked you if

you said, "It seems the boys are on the.job", and so forth.

Now, I will ask you another question: state whether or

not at the time -- at th e same time and in the same room

in said St ;rarres Annex: to the St Andrevls Hot el in th e s ai d

city of San LUis Obispo,
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State Federation of the 'Building Trades councils or tte

unions, and were very close in their confidences, and that

convention or meeting of the various labor unions of this

\Va ita l1Dr.:en t--jus t for 1egal reasons a.lone--

that prep~ati(')na were 'being rr:ade to pu1) off thut job,"

referring to the blowing up of the Times Building, or'

further S3"id to Mr. Cantrell, "I have known for sometime

words to that effect or that in substance or language

in any language to that effect? A No--

parations to blow up the Times Building, as attorney for th

statement or any statement that/conveyed any Buch an ide3..

Q State whether or not while you and Mr. Gantre~l were

still in tre same room, in the same hotel and at the sanJe

meeting here in the city of Los Angeles during the first

or were planning to blow up the ~irne6 Building to postpone

or put off that matter until after the state convention or

in substance to t~at effect? A 1 never made such a
•

you and Mr. Cantrell being there in said roan; alone, you

you had asked or begged them, referring to the parties who

we~ making preparations to blow up the Times building,

state, by whatever name tr.ey rr.ight have been c~lled, or

MIt • Ai'i'EI,. I.e o'bj eG t upon th e gr ound tf::=l tit is not

part of OctOber, 1910 of the Central Labor councils or

wi th them, referring to the parties who wer,~ [(laking pre-

time, he and you being there alone, you furtter said to

Mr. Cantrell in substance that you had been inconsul tation

!m. POGERS.

66 1

2

3

4'
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8
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16 !
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26 I
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sarre queotion, the oa.ne ruling and t:te sanle objection

Vi ill be deemed to be in terposed to each and every, ques tion

MR. ArrEL. We take an exception.

cannot be permitted, therefore, it is incompetent, irrele-

, ..LIne.on this

TEE COURT' Yes, oil' J it will be under E3 tood th at .tr..e

MR. ROGERS' May that objection follow tr..is line 'vvithout

l' epet it ion 1

cross..:examina tion, upon the fur ther eround tha. t the ques­

tion if den ied canno t be made the bas io of impeachn'en t or

the sUbject thereof, it being collateral to any issue in

this case, any contradiction or in,peaohr,.ent of the witness

~~t and imrr'a tel' ial for' any purpose ..

THE COURT' Objection overruled.

1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15
MR • ROGERS· That is all we wan t •

Q All right. Pow lC1ng rave yell !.r~o\'!Il :,i~. Frank B •

Q, to you know ;i IIlan by tre name of Frank B. Merriam?

A 1 do.

Q Frank B. Merr iam is also in the ~ounc ils of th e Soc ial ift

I

I

Q And not at that time? A\ And not at

A No such conversdtion or any language that could convey

any such idea W:lS ever used between us at any time.

party'l A Pe is State Secretary Treasurer.

Q, He is at present? A At present, and Ue person With

whom tr,is controversy arooe concerning Cantrell.

.tha t time.

. !f.R. FEEDER lCKS •

25

26

16
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18

19

20
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22

23

..
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1 A About a year and a half or two years.

2 Q, You knew him as state treasurer of the counCils of 1h e

3 80ciulist party'i' A 'He w'au elected when the office ,was in

4 Oaklapd" and the office wa.s noved down here and 1 rr,e't

5 him about two years ago, after his election.

6 Q State whether or not a few days or within a week after
•

7 tllle blowing up of the Times Building you vllere at 1.1r. Frank B.

8 Merr iam' s office, room 424 in the Heney Building here in th

9 city of Los Ar.gcJes, he ar.d you being there alone, and that

10 to and youtT.ere discussed or talked about t~e expJosion or

11 blowing up of the 'rimes Ruild.ing, and that you expressed

12 the belief or opinion that it \vas a dynamite explosior: and

13 that :,:r. Merriaul disputed it and oaid, lIThe Union boys

14 never did it, they would not be so foolish as that", or

15 I words to ttat effect or ttat in substance, to which yeu

16/ replied, "Yes, they did; yes, ttey did," repeating it

17 t'Nice, or wOl'ds to that effect or thut in su'bstance, and

18 that :.!r. Merrian: then SOlid, "1 cannot believe it," or words

19 to tna t effect or that in substanc e, 5.nd tt at you fur tter

22 8ur:stance. Please anS'Her trle quc8tion.

23 ~m. APPEL· roe rrake the S2J!'e objection on the 82..ne grounds

20

21

24

l' epl ied, "IV ell, if you could hear tten, tal k you would know I
or would. ur:derstar.d, " or words to ttat effect or trs..t in ·1

stated and it is not cro6s-exan:.ination. It is collateral

25 to issue and cannot be the basis of irrpeacbrrent of the

26 "Nitness on arq matter he bas testified to, that if the Vi
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to tl: is case.

ness answer e d in the aff ir n,a t ive it could not con tr adict

him or if he denied .it and were contradict.ed tha.t it would

A few papers and nioney.that vaul tt A

coming back to the morning of the 28th of Noven;ber, 1911

Party, but no such conversation that could convey any S11Cl';

an idea ever took place bet'Neen us.

not contradict him in a~y matter testified to in reference

have talked over tl:e disas tel', of course. Were there

MR. ArrEL' We except. And not crosB-examination.

togetrer because 1 was a n:en;ber of the State Executiye

A No such conversation ever took place between us. We

1'HE COURT· nverruled.

MR • ffiEDF:FICKS. All right. Just a rr;on.ent--UoiN, :.!r. Parrirr:m

turned over to :,rr. Ford at the time of tte investigation.

at the time when you. visited yeur vault in the German-

office iL the Higgins Building what all did you have in

!ul1erican Savings Bank and ther. afterwards vrent up to the

1 believe the items of the deposita and the checks were

Q Wl--ose money? A Mine.

Q Per sonal money? A Irine; yes, sir.

Q Your perm nal r;loncy 1 A Yes, sir.

~ You had accounts with two bants, did you not, :rr. Harri­

man? A I have an account With tre First National Bank,

1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11,
12

13

14
I

15 I

I
16 I
17

18

19

20
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22

23

24

25

26 !

I
> I
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Q Was t hat a personal a cc oun t? A That was a person al

acconnt, and also I kept for a little While, some of the

money th ere that was turned ov er to me for current expen oos,

and shortly after I separated the account and placed the

trust account in the stat ~ and County :Eank, across th e c or­

ne}." of the street.

Q That was the money the l.fcUamara defense trust ac-

count, you mean? A yes, from time to time small sums were

given me to pay the current expenses of the 0 ffice. I

think aiso I turned the -- or had turned the statement of

the deposit and th e cheeks over to Mr Ford in that res-

pect.

Q, 'When did you take this account over to the bank across

the street? A I don't remember the date, but the

statement that he has will show.

Q Is that the bank that you drew this check on, this

$500 check? A Oh, no sir; that \'8S the Southern'

California Bank. I moved my acc ount fran th e Fi rst
--

National Bank to th e SOuthern California Savings Pank on

the comer of Fifth and Brooo.way. It has been there evefr

since.

Q Well, you had a checldng account then, and money in

deposi t in one or two banks at thi s time? A I had a

checking account on the Southern California Savings Bank

at the corner of Fifth and Broadway. I hed the trust

account, but was not handling that. Mr Russell
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ins the amounts at that time.

Q, Well, you had --

llfR ROGERS: Wait a moment. I don't khow that the witness

has finished.

THE mum: Have you finished? A yes.

MR.FREDERICKS: You had an accou.nt of your OVVrl, a checking

ace OlUlt ? A yes sir.

Q In th e bank -- .A At the Southern California Savings

Bank.

Q, at the same time that you hal this money in the

vault? A I did.

UR ROGERS: The witness was not pennitted to finish his

answer. What was it? A At the Southern California

Savings Bank on the corner of Fifth and lXoadway.

UR FREDERICKS: When was the indebtedness incurred that

you paid this note? A The date of the note will show.

Q Do you remember th e d at e of t ret? A In 1909, I think,

two years before, I believe.

Q 'WEJS it a tvro-year note? I could find out by going and

looking at it.. Ib you remember? A The not e itself vrill

show. I think it was. I think it ':1 as due about this

time.

Q, About what time -- will th e cl erk 1 et me s ea that?

A The record will mow -- I don't remember the date, but

I think t hat is a bout right.

Q, This appears to be dated october 20, 1909, and it
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therefore became due October 20,1911 ? A yes, and

this was the first time they had presented it to me.

Q. W as this a personal matt.er that you had with them?

A We bought a ranch --

Q. I don't care to go into your private affairs. A This

wa~ a personal matter.

Q. ItvJas a personal matter, ....vas it? A A personal mat-

ter.

Q. You been to too t vaul t anytime shortly before this

morning of the 28th? A The dates that I visited the

v8ultbefore and.after, I think have been turned over

to the officers.

Q. Have you any independent recollection in regard to

that? A I don't remenber the exact date, but most of

than vrill correspond ·Nith the. dates of deposits in the

bank. Vhenever I ba d to place any in th e bank, I t rans-

f erred the money over.

Q. Did you have any mon e.r in the safe deposit box that

you got from Mr Darrow aside from fees? A No sir, that

is what Iwas going to ask.

Q. Well, you also ,~ot your fees in checks, you never

got any c ash? A Never got any cash.

You hadn't any in there you gChtt from ur Darrow?

A Never. I got a check -- I had the check cashed, and I

put thecash in this drawer.

Q. Took the cash and put it in the drawer instead of
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1 leaving it in t he bank? A I did.

2 Q In regard to this $'500 check, as a matter offact,

3 don't you r best memory serve you t hat that check was brought

4 up befo,re the grand jury on a SUbpoena of Ur Blair, the

5 c ashier of the bank, and that you did not bring it to the

6 grand jury? 4,... J..did..not say that I did.
• .'Y' -,.-

7 Q Vlllat is your best recollection of it? A I said

8 this mornil'\.~ that the circumstances out of which it".ras

9 brought to your 'affice,vms as I stated here, that I sent

10 Q But you don't remember whether you brought it up?

11 UR ROGERS: Wait a moment. I submit the witness is entitle

12 to answer.

13 THE CaURI': Have you finished? A No sir.

14 THE COURT: Go ahead. A That lir Russell VlJent back and

15 made a statement, and out of thefacts the ch eck was

16 brought to your office, whether from our office or ,:nether

17 from the First National Bank, I did not know.

181m :EREDERICKS: Well, t bat i3 only a conclusion of yours,

19 that out of those facts, as a matter offact -- A I

20 tho1.l,g")1t so.

21 Q -- the bank'iiras subpoenaed to bring the ChECk up there,

22 end that is the way the checkvJas gotten? A :tfaybe.

23 yes. };lr Russell told you v{hat he had testified to

24 before the -grand jury, did he? A He told me that he

25 had been asked if I were at my office that morning-, and

26 that he had answered in the negative. Whether he said

'Znn
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the gfand jury asked him or Mr FOrd asked him, possiblY,

I don't know, and I told him to return and correct his

statement, and he did.

Q HOVI do you know he corrected his statement? A I

have seen a transcript of the testimony before th e grand

julY since, and he did it.

Q At any rate, he told you what he had testlfied to be-

fore the grand jury, notwithstanding the fact that he vIas

under oath, an oath which proviJied that he should not

reveal what his testimony was before the grand jury?

A He made
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and which calls for a conclusion or opinion of the witness

MR. ROGERS. Wait a mOIl1ent, if youx Fonor please--tn2-t is

VR. FREDER1CKS. Q Row, you say when you got back to the

But yeu do rerren:ber of being at the vault on trie morning

got to headquarters.

Q Absolutely sure of it 7 A Acsol 1.1 tely • I

Certainly jQ Absolutely sure of getting SOIl:e nioney out? A

Q Absolu tel y sure of afterwards going up in tbe u' . ,l.lgglns

Building~ A Certainly.

Q. And you got there about 90'010c1:7 A Vlell, 1 got there

of the 28th, you are sure of that? A rositive.

a little earlier than 1 testified I did ',vhen 1 v,as befor

bank, which he did.

Q You mean telephoned to him? A No, he left r.oIfle atout

the same till:e· 1 did, but 1 stopped for breakfast and he

Tl:E COURT. Tte ;u6stion is withdrawn.

bank tha t lliorning, the morning of the 28th of November, and

went on and got the machine and took tis breakfast ufter

Q But you walked down there? A yes, our--rr:y machine

was kept in a garage on South Vain street and 1 walked

to the bank and told rry boy to bring tbe machine to the

rr..achine? A Yes, sir.

~m • FR EDEPICKS· 1 withdraw tre ques tioD.

you went into your vault, the.t you came out and tock your

and is not cross-cxan'ination and no foundation laid.

objected to as assuming a fact Viti,on is not true in law,

we
i

Q
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1 the grand jury. Before the grand jury 1 said about 9 or

2 o. 1i tt,le before, 1 do not I' emember. 1 think you will find

3 tbose ar e about the wor ds •

4 Q 1 want your rnerrory now. A JU8 t a moment. Now, 1

5 went a little earlier than that. 1 would not haye remem-

6 bered had it not been called to my attention since :,!r •
•

7 Franklin testified. Tre circumstances are ttese--

8 Q 1 only asked you the time, ;i!r. Harrin:an, 1 am not crOSE3-

9 examining you on that point.

10 THE COt'R T. He is fixing tte time.

A By the c ircurn-

Shortly after 8--

Shortly after half past ~~ght.

A

MR. FREDEPICKS. 1 only asked him--

s tancee.

c: I:L you fix the time and then I ask you the CirCUJT"'tance~
A It was earlier than that. I

11

12

13

14 / tha t wi 11 be diff e1' en t •
/

15 r Q About when was it 1
II16' Q Shortly after 8'? A

17 Q. Shortly after half past eight? A Yes.

ti Ire •

don't knoW'.

About talf.an hour's walk frOIl! ycur house to the vault?

Pefor eAQ. Wh~t',time did you leave nonce tr.Clt morning? I
I

ight,. qUite a little; enough to get H,y breakfast and cOlIe I'

do~n to the vault.

I
I

A Abou t 15 or 20 rr.inu tes • 1 got my bI' eakfao t in tr e mean- I

Q 15 or 30 minutes and tow long for your breakfast? A 1

Q 15 or 20 ffiinutes1 A Not over.
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1 Q Tho. t Vlould be ta1f an hour. Pow long i~ the vaul t?

2 A Ob, not a rr:inute. 1 went in there and un10eked the box,

3 took it out and away 1 went.

4 I Q. Do you r ernerr:ber wh en the 1 as t t irr.e Vi as ths. t yO'Ll Wer e

5 up in the 'Figgins Building before the 28th? A IJo, 1 do

6 not; 1 dicm't go often to the office duri.r.g that montb,
•

7 but oc~a8ionally •

8 Q Was trJe defense in the McNamara case funds supplying

9 you with any money to us e in Y0'LU' campaie:n? A No ,.

10 Q, Your campaign any par t of the defens e of the McNamara

11 case? A No part.

12 Q Did ;,1r, Darrow get son,e money from Lincoln Steff ins for

13 defense funds and turn it over to you?
/

14 MP. • ArrEL, We object to th3.t as irnr;,aterial and not cross-

15 eX::iffiination •

16 A Let r.im ask it.

17 THE COURT, Objection Bustained,

18 MR • FREDF.P. H~Y.S. That is all.

19 THF. COURT. ,Any redirect?

..

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

RFDI RECT F,IArV:DJATIOn.

MR. ROGERS. Q, Vito is Edward Adams Cantrell'? A He was

a minister u:r..tiJ about 6 or 7 years ago and after that

bee arre interested in the Socialist aoverrent and has been

a lecturer on the pla.tform ever since.

Q !row, after this a11eged conversation at San Louis Obi
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one.

THE COUR T. No •

A And Merriman also.

A ycs, sir.

1 move tbe last part be stricken out as not

A 1 am finishing rllY answer.

MR. FORD· There is no question before the court.

A Not only is that true--

(Last question and answer read by the reporter.)

!,f,R. FORD' 1 move to strike out the last question and

TFE COURT. StrH:e it out, the latter portien of the answer.

TP'E COURT. flow, letTs see. Read that last question and

answer.

TFE COURT. Yotion denied.

both of then: are absolutely incompetent, irrelevant and

irr,material but we difu1't make any objection to the first,

anower.

mality of having it stricken out.

MR 0 FORD. 1 rrade that motion and the coun"el immediate;l.y

shoots another question before the cour t rules. 1 think

MR • FDBD· Can 1 get a rul ing •

THE COURT. If youwant to have it stricken out, tr.e for-

MR. FOHD·

Q And Merr in.an also?

in ycur behalf? A He did up to tr.e very end of the carr.-

MF • ROGERS. Q And Merr iman also?

. .
l' eSpOTISlve to any quee tion.

paign, and Merriman also.

you say that be supported you for Mayor and made speeches
1
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and answer

1 (Last question read by the reporter.)
II

2 THE COUFa': Strike out '':r-Iarri£'m, also". Now, there is

3 another question.

4 1m ROGERS: And Marriam, also?

5 MR FORD: ttl To that Vie obj.ect on th e ground it is incompe-

6

7

8

t eX!. t, 11' reI evan t and immat eri 81, s eoY..!ng to a sc ertain th e

position of a man whonas not yet even been called as a

witness, is not any cross-examination at this time.

9 lfR ROGERS: It is not c ross- ecamination, but it is re­

10 direct.

11 THE croU1Rffi: Obj ec tion OJ errnled.

12 A .And Uarriam also, and they were both the principal per-

is to testify cone erning a man who has not yet appeared

sUJDrted me in the convention and in t.he campaign.

:MR FORD: To that we object on thegrounl it is not in any

The only purpose of it is,

sons to press me torocept the nomination for mayor, and

sense redirect examination.

and an attempt on the part of counsel et this time to

mabIe the wi tn ass to pI" esent an a rgument to the jury

in this court. It certainly is not redirect examination,

]/[R ROGEHS: Now, HI" Harriman, you say th at Cantrell made

a speeCh the other night. As a m~tter of fact, there was

a meeting the other night at which llr Cantrell, mlong

other persons, bitterly attacked you and tried to read

you out of th e Socialist party, 0 I" something like that,

wasn't there?
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cernirg a man who has not yet been called as a vfitness.

Supposing l.rr Cant rell was cell ed as a witness h ere, an d

counsel vr"nted, then, to ask those questions, it would be

prop er to ask it, perhaps, and perhaps Mr Cantrell woul d

admit those things, and if he did admit the.m, then they

c0111d not recall this witness to prove the contrary,

and if he didn't admit them, then they could recall this

wi tness 0 r any other wi tness to testify to ,\;'111 at he did and

what he said; on the further ground, no foundation has

been laid c:t this time to show Mr Harriman was present at

any such meetings, and that it is anything but hearsay

at the pr esent time.

THE COURT: Itseems tome, ur Rogers, Ur Ford is right

about th e or der a f proof. I will h ear you if you ·wi sh

to be heard.

MR ROGERS: Insofar as the order of proof is co~erned,

your Honor vdll recall oncross-examination they bring

in th e nam e of a pe rson and bring in the all eg ed COIN er­

sation. That opens up all the relations between that

person and the witness upon their asting the question and

IW3 do not have towai t for him to come upon the st and; p er­

chance he !Wer comes, and therefore, there re.mains nothing

but the insinuc.tion which we are at Ii berty in view of

the mention of the nsne and the circumstances end place

and persons present, and the inuendo of th e c OIll ersation,

we are entitled, therefore, to go into the whole



1 situation and the circumstances, and especially is that

2 true 'INhere it is claimed that the donvel'sationv~s be-

3 tween the vritness and the person. named behind a locked.
4 door, and no one Cible to hear it. We hare a right to

5 show therosolute improbability of the whole matter, the

6 improbebili ty of it, the unlikelihood 0 fit, that if lfr

7 Edward Adams C,mtrell perchance be a man of any sort of

8 citizenship, if Mr Harriman told him any .such thing. as

9 that, that he should affirmatively support him and hold

10 meetings and on e thing and ~mother to make him the chi ef

11 magistrflte of this city, it is a most remarkable condi-

12 tion of things, and when we develop that si tuation, we have

13 a right to develop what he did immediatelyeft'er he ceased

14 to be l[r Harriman's friend. That is the law of this mat-

15 ter and always has been.

16 lJrR FORD: If th e court pI ease, t hat is not the law of th e

17 matter. The testimony <:.t the :PI' esent time cbes not shoVl

18

19

20

21

th at any c our ersation occurred between 1,fr Harriman and

trr Cantrell along the lines indi cated by the qu estions~ro-
1 .

pounded by Captain Fredericks to the vritness; the only

testimony before this court is the testimony of this

22 witness that snch a COIN ersation did not occur. There is

23
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no evidenc e before th e cou It yet, that snch a COIN ersa­

tion did occur, and therefore at\'{ inquiry into who that

man was or vrh at hi s relation to the case was, is absolut e-

ly immaterial until some evidenc e appe ars before this
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court that such a com ersation did occur, rod then v"hEn

the vri tn ess takes the stand th e sole inquiry in regard

to his relations with the present witness on th estand,

will be directed towards the moiii.ve of the wi tness who

is then on thes tand, and, as your Honor has already

in~icated, it is purely a question of proof, or order ~

proof at the present time. That is vvhat i/"e are arguing.
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Over objection the

in any wise modify the statement that there was a party of

When l,~r. Cantrell takes the stand, perhaps some of the

direct action. Pe went into an argullient as to his opinions

and his concl usians as to the reasons for the existence of

"Is there a portion of your party, the socialist party

relevant, but at the present time there is no evidence

before this court that sucb a conversation did occur.

objections--one of the questions asked of this Witness was,

things that counsel desires to inquire into will then be

which believes in direct action?"

such a por tion of the par ty as bel ieves in d ir e~ t ac tion, "

and then said Lothing which modified that in any wayj he

gave an argurrent as to his reasons, his b~liefs, his opin­

ions and to t1:e causes of such a condition which did not

modify tte answer in any way, sn:'1pe or forn,.

6ucb a par ty. He said, "Ther e is sue!: an elEmen t, ther e is

110W , if there is anyt hing upon tbat SUbject on cross­

examination it was not in response to a question. We made

Witness was allowed to make an explanation which did not

finished.

MR. AT'f'ZI,. \Ve object to 1;1> going into that.

r.ffi. FOrm. 1 'llouJci like to go on witbout interruption ..

ruE COURT. Tte court will listen to counsel until 1;e r.as

MR • APT'El.. VI e have a l' i ght to reply.

J~p. FORD. Whether or !ot Try position is logical, 1 believe

26· in its incer ely and 1 VJou] d 1 i 1:e to have th e cour t ] is te
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to it. I may be wrong and th':lt is for your Honor to

decide. The point is) wbatever statements the witness rray

have made on the stand are improperly in the record.

Perhaps we migrt have rr:oved to strike them out. We didn't

do so) it does not rr.ake any difference) it is absolutely

iIllmaterial what this witness believes) or his opir.ions are

as to the history of the existence of such things and that

would be the only possible excuse they can bring it out

on;at the present time it is absolutely incompetent, irre­

levant and imn:aterial) not a subject for redirect eX:lrrina-

tion at the present ti~e and wholly violative of the order

of proof as laid do.wn inthe codes and decisions and the law

in this state and every otter state.

UR • APPEl... 1 t is importan tin this, your Honor: A VI i tnes6

is asked the question whether or not he made such and such

8 ta ten,ents to· this par ty Cantr ell. . 'l'1:e wi tness h0l8 given

an answer th~ no such thir.g occurred and in addition to

that he, being our witness, we have a right to call his at­

tention to the fact r.ot only th':l.t he did not do BO but

that in the very nature of things it could not have been BO.

In other words) if '.Ve get fronl this man a letter) from :.!:.

~antrell, recomrnending ;i[r. ~arrin;an here for t1:e high office,

speaking of him as a good citizen, as a man fitted for the

office, ~ulogizing him, we would have a r igtt to show not

only that he did not 6 ay th3. t to ,,!r. ("antre1 ]) but how

he hav·e said it to :.:::-. I"'antrell wr.en tere is a
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happened and tba t th en the innovation of them 'IV as for

proper.

sequent to tte time of the conversa'tion in_ which he has the

Now, having gone that far, we havhighest opinion of tim.

a r igtt to shmv tha~ before this witness goes upon the

stend tta t this Iran bas become an enemy and tr:-,t he has

ow itched around and then he may pOSE! ibly have sl:oken illy 0

th.e witness, wrongly concerning him and tha.t the two posi­

tions s tanding before the jury, ttey can easily glean

from the two positions that in tbe first instance at the

tin:e of this alleged conversation that it could not have

to those circumstances for the purpose of· determining Whe­

ther the denial of Mr. Earriman io reasol1e.ble and probable an

reasons he became his enemy and that trey are of recent

f:t'\.brication and of recent origin. NOVi, the jury is entitled
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1 :M:R roW: We have a right to close on our obj ection, and

before this';court as )let that M'r Cantrell has said any

mean? A Uy son.

things are true? There is not a scintilla of widence

Read the question.

Th e boy you referred to \men you s aid "My boy and I

Well, then t you and your son left home together. Did

Your son? A yes.

Q,

Q

Q,

the safety d eposi t bOX, when you say ltIrtY boylt, whom do you

(Question read.)

the present time that J\,{r Cantrell has said one 'Vrord~ainst

the defendant? Has he taken the stand and said these

of the se things com erning the wi tn €ss on the stand.. .

you bre~kfast together? A No.

Q, He y!ent an d got th e car and c aIB.e back to th e bank and

picked you up and then he gO.!_.h.ts breakfast "ster you ,lent

around to headquarters? A He did.
-.-'.-.. _- ...¥ ......._----~~-------

THE COURT: Objection sustained.

MR ROGERS: Exception.

THE COURI':

""Talked dovm from home tog ether" and th at he got break­

fast and 11. ev,'8nt and got th e car an d barought it around to

1m ROGERS: Th at is all.

1m FREDERICKS: That is all.

we would like to close on this, end I '~ll ask your Honor,

is there one scintilla of evidence before this court ~,t
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FRAlrK E. \~LFE, a witness cE~led on behalf

of the defendant, being fi rat duly sworn, testified c:.S

follows:

A Frank E.

DI REGT EXAlfi:H J..TI Ol'l

What is your name, pI ease?MR DARROW: Q

Wolfe.

Q 'Where do you live? A 6166 Santa ltl:onicb Boulevard.

Q Hevv long have you lived in thi sci ty? A Jibout ten

years.

Q, W1 e.t is your busine ss? A I am a newspap er man.

Q Are you -- Where have you worked in the newspaper

business? A In ,a number of cities, Los Angeles, Boston,

New York, Louisville and a number of cities.

Q Where did youtegin your newspaper career, if you call

that a career? A If you may c all ita career, I think

on the Louisville Courier-Journal.

Q How long did you 'work on the Louisvil~e Courier-

Journal?

1rR FORD: The other day \7hen Iwas examining UrBain

the obj ~tion was made going to a mants whole history,

and ,vhat is sauc e for the ~ oose is sauce for the gander.

I do not think it is necessary to gol:ack into a mants

\mole career to qualify him as. a "Ii tness.

THE COUR£: I pr esume t his will 'be very bri ef.

MRDARROW: I v~uld not7;aste much time on it.

MR FORD: It was not, pe rhaps, any 1 mgthi er tha1 ours
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when I asked lEr Bam, 'when I asked about his armycareer.

UR DARROW: That ".as a different purpo se enti rely.

THE COURT: Obj ec t ion CN errul ed.

llR DARROW: And vihere else did you work in the East?

A principally in BOston.

Q. On what paper? A The BOston Herald and the Bost on

Globe.

Q In what capacity? A I think as special writer and

part of the time as telegrapher.

Q How long were you working on those papers? A I think

mout ten years.

Q And did you come from there to Los Angeles? A yes.

Q And you have been in prac tic ally the same bus ine ss

since? A yes si r.

Q How long have you 'teen in the newspap er business, all

together? A Intermittently, I think a period covering

about 20 years.

Q Y.hat pap3rs didyou work on in this city? A The

Los Ang el E5 Herald.

Q What position had you on the Los Angeles Eerald?

A Several positions, fram that of telegraph editor to

th<::ot of managglllg adi tor.

Q How long were you managing editor? A I think about

six yel;u~S, five 0 r six years. It may not be so long.

Q Are you in the nevlspapel' business nO'll? A yes.

Q \'~at paper? A Los Ang:bles Municipal ]Jews.
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Q That is the paper established by the city ?h ere?

A yes.

Q During the IlcNama ra case, Vlhat "vas your business?

A I'W8s correspondent for a number of eastern ne.vspapers,

and magazines.

Q. And Vfhe re were your offices? A Room 925 Higgins /

BUilding.

Q That was cl&$e by the offices of the defense in the
oJ

McNamara case,v~sn1t it? A yes.

Q And in that place you got ccquainted ,vi th me? A yes.

Q lJfr Darrow? A yes.

Q You had lmown .Tob Harriman some time before, I take

it? A yes sir.

Q Were you a c andidat e for offic e :Est ye ar? A I Vi as,

during the municipal campaign.

Q Vmat was it? A What office?

Q yes. A I harbo red the delu s i on I VI as running fo r

council.

Q On the SOcialist ticket, \vas it? A Yes sir.

Q Vfuere was your office in the Higgins Building in re-

lation to .Tob Harriman's office? A Next door, the next

offic e.

Q Where ViaS mine in refernnce to your office? A Your

office was across th e hall to the south of mine, I think

two doOt's, or three.
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Q ~~o doors beyond, across the hall? A Three.

toge tter ? A Yes, B ir •

Q Whereabouts?

!,ir. l!arrington sViore tr..at he

That is objected to on tte ground it is

A You were in tte corner roo~, 1 believeQ Or three.

Q It was edited there? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you know :Pert Frankl in, know who he was? A Yes, sir.

Q Pad you seen him up there in the offices'? A Yes, sir.

Q Fad you ever seen 't im, the.. t is , Frankl in and Harr ington

that was the ttird door north.

Q Did you know a rr.an ~amed John Harrington, called by the

state in this case? A Yes.

Q .Wbere was hio office in reference to yours? A Directly

across the hall.

Q How was your door, generally open or closed? A Open

all the time 1 was in there, virtually.

Q, A good many people COlLe and go to ycur office dur ing the

day tirLe? A Yes, qui te a large nuwber •

~ You also edited the Socialist p~per at this place, did

you not? A It was edited there, yes.

MR • FRELF:RICKS

in-.Iliater ial •

TFE COUR T. 1 presurf:e it is pre 1 iminary •

never saw Frar:kl in over three times.

THE COURT. Oh, yes.

MR • FRF.DERICKS. "{au want to prove II,ore than t[Jree times

1$ • DA.RBOW· No, your Honor.
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1 MR. DARRO~ Three times, besides once at his bou6e--yes

2 1 want to prove more and will prove more too.

3 MR. FPEDF:Rl CKS We withdraw the objection.

4

5

THE COURT' The objection is withdrawn.

MR. FREDEPICKS. We withdraw the objection on that state-

6 ment.

7 A Wh:'it is tr e ques t ion 7

8 (Question read.)

9 A In the corr idbr of the buD ding and in~!r. Harrington's

10 room, poss i bly in one of the other r OOlliS, tb e recept ion

11 room. "-;.!'.

12 Q About how often had you Been them together? A 1 suppose

13 a coupl e do zen times.

14 Q Do you know whether you have seen then: in 0 tter rooms

15 excepting in Harringtonts room and the corridor? A No.

16 Have you Been them convers ing t_Rge_ttert ~... _.Xf,3.~L~~_..-----_.._~_.__.~~""-------_ ..__.- .,-

17 T?E COLTRT' 1 didn't get the answer. Did you answer?

18 A Yes •.-----
19 MR. DA'FlBOW. Q, During wha: period did this cover that you

20 found them together 7 A 1 t would be difficult for nje to

21 say, but during the progress of the McNan,ara case.

22 Q. And up to towards the 1as t, or-­

23 1 ae t.

AYes, towar ds tt: e

24 Q, i'Jer e you well aCQuainted 'ii i th Harr ington 7 A No, not

25 well acquainted.

26 Q State if you went to San Fr anc is co a tone i.'tl me 1,''/ i th
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date.

W2.y up.

T didn,t exactly go with him; we went onthe aan;\3 train.

Did you ha've any conversation with hiln while you wereQ

A

Q Do you remember when ttat was? A

away 1 A Yes, we talked together some on the train on our

Q Did you talk Witt him in reference to the McNarr.ara case

and the people connected With it? A We had--

Q, Do you r emerrbsr abou t the t ime~, or couldn f t you fix that?

A I should say it was acno.whore about the firat part 00
October.

1m. FORD' Just a rroment--we orject to that question on the

1
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5
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7

8

9

10

11

12

13
ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant and irr,F,aterial and

MR. DARROW- You are a good guesser.

and such a place the following conversation was had,

but 1 ass ume tta t this witness is ca~ led to tes tify to

This is preliminary.

Aru 1 carr ect"?

that it is not inthe proper form provided for for the ask-

ing of an inipeaching quee tion. 1 assurr,e, and maybe 1 am

to ask him whether or not at such and such a time and such

MR • FORD - That being th e case, 1 think the proper forr.: is

lin.

an ir.:peaching qU88tion put to :,ir. Harrington or to i,1r. Frank-

wrong and if so 1 sho'L.1d refrain and wi thdraw nlY objection--

repeating to him the same question that was put to the

VI i tness •

MR • DA~'PO,{1 •
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tion.

answer tre question.

to repeat the conversation.

THE COlJRT. Objection is withdrawn?

All right.'I'PE COUR T •

THE COURT. 1'he witness is admonisbed not to do that but to

MR. FORD. The objection is withdraw'n.

MR~ FORD. Yes, that is all I ask that he be admonished not

TFE COUR T' It iel" pr e1 iminary •

MR. FORD. The wi tness has 6 tar ted to repeat the conversa-

1

2

3'

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11 \ MR. DAPROW' Q Answer the que s tion yes or no, whe ther you

12 did ha,re a conversation wi th tim? A 1 did.

13 Q, At that time, llr. Wolfe, did he say to you that Darrow

14 was very particular that everything should be done on the

15 Square with reference to tr.e case, or words to that effect

16 or substance?

17 NIP. • FREtF.P.ICKS. That is o1::'jected to on the grot;nd no found~

18 tion has been laid.

19 UR • FORD. As to time. PI !Z1'.~.t

MR • FREDERICKS. Peferr ing to page 3812. All right.

lIR • FREDERICKS. Not only as to time but as to the question I
I

itself. 1 am frank to admit to tr.e court 1 am nia};ing this I
objection at rar.dom, 1 have sent for my notes on the matter.\

I

FREDERI CKS • You are pronloting me ali t.tle here.
=- 12'~~>'i«""'''''''''''1~

1 W ill shOW you llIine, Gener al •

What page are you ref err ing to?TPF. COUR T.

r,m. DARROW.
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MR • DARROW' Wi thdraw the obj ect ion, do you 7

MR. FRED~PICKS. Yes, 1 withdraw the objection.

MR , DAPPOW. Q Now, if you 'N ill answer the qu es t ion •

TEE COURT· Read the question,

(Ques tion read. )

A '7ords·to that effect.
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1 Q Did you have any other conversation with him efter

2 the arrest of Franklin? A yes.

that he had nev er seen th e slightest sign of crooked

practice or any bribery around the offic e, and that he

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

Q In r eferenc e to this matter? A yes.

Q, A ff3\v days e:fter th e arrest 0 f }fr Franklin, di d Har- \.J .
rington say to you in the of fic e in the Eggins Building, \

or'in the hall or thereabouts, UIt was all nonsense, '

the talk of Darrow's' being cOIUlected in any VlfSY with

the bribery of Loc k'l1O 0 d, that he h a::l. knOVI11 Darrow too

long and had been too intimate]y connected vIi th him and

/
lmew Darrow coul d not have lmovffi arwthillg about i til, a r I
words to that effect or in substance? A Yes, he made:

. . "-. l ---- 1
a stateIl'Jent in sUbstance suc1'l.as.. is read there. . ",!:~,~<,,,, ..L, _""'
_--- w -~·--~·'"··~..'"-·,~~,·,~··-.... ,·~--···f~..-O<.•~'-~"-' ..... , ,- _'. - -- - --- .. ' .• _.o.,.,...,,, ...,,~._ -". ,-,.'- ,--",.,...._~ "-''''''-'':;~~.~'. ':;~,>'.. /.:::., ...,:;.~<:;:,~:;··~;c·,<,1.',..i'l' ~::;!> ..' .'-,' , .' .' .. '-.. i.' ',>< <.' - ...•

Q,- ur Wolfe, during the fe "! months that the Mcl-Tamara {
;

16 case vIas in progress did you meet me frequently? A I

17 saw you every day.

19 quently when you passed by my door and nov; and then in

20 your offic e.

18 Q lnd whereabouts, generally spealdng? A QUite fre-

it was BOnnie Brae.

sion it is north.

Q Did you lmOVl v:here I lived? A yes sir.

North or south? A I don't lmow just where First

Do you nO'll recall th e name of th e street? A I think

Q

Q

street intersects BOIUlie Brae, but I am under the impres-
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Q Over in the vic ini ty of Suns et Boul E-V ard? A yes.

Q Have you ever been at my house? A yes sir.

Q,. At the office) how frequently did. you say you had seen

me) about? A I think I saw youevery day during the

time the trial was in l)rogress.

Q. .And hovl about visits and conv ersations as to wheth er

we had them frequently? A Almo st every day; every day or

so.

Q 'Where did you live? A Where I do now.

Q. Well) now) you have given us the street number) but what

portion of the ci ty? A In Col €grove.

Q That is out Hollywood way) isn't it? A South of

Hollywood.

Q .And you lived there at that time? A ·ye.s.

Q i,~hen youcame to my house) or went from it) ,mat car

did you take? A I took t he Los .Angeles pacific, the Cole-

grove car.

Q on vrha t street? A It runs north on Hill street,
I •

Sunset BOul €Verd and Santa 1!on~ca Boulevard.

Q i:7h ere did' t hat c,ar land do\'m to\'Jn? A At the Hill

street station between Fourth and Fifth.

Q Stop at the other streets? A It stops at all int er­

sec t ion st r eet s •

Q What did you know as to whet her I went out OJ er tha t

same line, or car at di fferent t 1m E5 when I came in?

A I saw you riding on those cars on some en casions.



1 Q
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Do you recall the morni!\<s, or do you r ecall th'e~"-<lliY"''Ofl'''H''''

2 Bert Franklin's arrest? A yes.

3 Q Do you mow the day of the month or don,t you recall

4 the day of the month or the month? A I have seen the

5 date mentioned frequently; I should not have recalled it

6 o~hervfise.

7 Q Is there aI\)Tthing in your mind to recall the date, or

8 do you remember just there VJaS such a day? A I r ec all

9 the day.

10 Q Do you remember ",'hen you first heard of thea-rest of

11 Bert Franldin on that day? A yes.

12 Q Jlbout what time ofday did you hear of it? A I

13 think between 10 and 11 o'clock, possibly 11.

14 Q Do you J~ ecall how the information first came to you?

15 A I think it CaIne through one of the clerks or stenogra-

16 phers coming into the room and making the announcement.

17 Q How long before t m t tim e had you seen me, as n ear as

A I think you

HOw :rar is that viaduct, or. don't. you.r ecail, from

lnd vihereabouts? A At the office.

Do you recall where I took that ca'r?

Where di d you see me first that morning, if you r ec all ?

On the Col Eg rove car coming in to th e city.

Q

there, as you usually did.

Q

Q

Bonnie Brae? A I think it is about 100 yards.

A

you c an~etat it? A !bout two hours.18

19

20

21

2

23

24

25

26
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1

2

3

4

5

6

Q You don't know uhich pla:e it vfas? A No, I saw

you shortly eft er we P.-?<R.?L~d_,.t.he.r..e..
~._.--. """~~.". .."~,,_..,..__",,,,ffo~"'" .'

Q,' And whe re vrere you? A on the rear of the car.

Q, Sitting do,,'iIl or s tanding up? A Sitting.

Q, Do you remember how th ecar',vas as to y.heth er peopl e

were standing at, that point? A yeS, they 'J'Jere standing

7 then, ~nd quite a crowd got on at Elysian Park avenue'

8' """at the transfer point. ~'
9 ._._...._._,_.-.._-~--_.,., .."' --, ,

Vhat park? A I think it is Elysien park avenue,

A Abou t th e time we got off th e car?

8:30.

oo\"m? A Ab ou t 8: 30 •Pnd came

And do you know ~here I got off? A You got off at

Where did you .~et off? A Second and Hill.

lTb,ere is that point? A That is about 4 or 5 blocks

Do you recall about what time in the morning that was?:{

yes. AQ,

Q,

came'dovm.

the same place.

Q

or at the poiht where the Eylsian park cars at that time

Q,

Q

have ~D¥ c arN ersation.

~st of BOnni e Brae.

Q, Do you remember whether we had any comrersation on ~\

th ecar, or do you remember where I was on th e car on that

morning? A You stood on the rear of the car. We did not

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

26
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A Yes.

Tte 'IV i tness

t.~e off ice 01//'\<----,,'""""--,.,...::....",...~.,:,," ..

A About 30 minutes.

We walked, coming down tothe car?· A

T'PE COUR'T'. You can answer U:.::.t yes or no.

coming down, especially'[ A You as ked me--

immaterial, calling for eVidence, self-serving declarations

your usual time, or wha t7 A Yes, it was my uBL::al time to
~ _h_..........._ ~~_':'":, ..

go to the office.

Q And bow long did it take you to get down fron, !Iollywood,

Q • And what did we do after that tin:,e, after getting off

THE COUR T. Yes, answer the quest ion yes or no.

ember any of the topics of discussion"/

Q ffave you any spec ial w:aj: of fI'x,ing that time or was it

answer.

rm. DARROW. Q ~ri thou t say ing WhCi t W8..S said, do you r eni-

Q. Do you rerr,ember whether we 1;rere discussing anything

even remotely touching uvon the topics, and hearsay and

A Yes.

a cone ~UB ion.

MR. DAnROW. Q i71'atwere a:ny of the topics we were dis-

MR. FORD' Just a monJent, thatcalJs for a yes or no

is admonlshe~ to answer the question yes or no.

MH. FO:1D. We oeject to that as incoD:r;:;etent, irreJevar.t and

cuss ing?

~ .. ---'.-..I:R. FORD . Vi: e obj ec t to tha t as call ing for hear B ay, call ing,

for a conclusion of the Witness us to the subject rLatter,

Colgrove?

14p 1

2

3

4

~
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15
1

16 i

17 I

18

19

20

21

22

23

,24

25

26



1

2

3

for--if the declarations are anything that would be 6e1f-

serVing--l do not presun:e trey ar e admiss ions--

MR • DARROW. They might be.

I
I

4' MR. FORD. Yeti would not put them cn, I know thc:.t. We

5

6

7

8

9

10

object to that as calling for self-serving declarations.

1~. DARROW. Your Honor, that is not in the line of self-

serving declarations in the least and no conversation will
I

be called for of that nature. 1 know the rule perfectly

well. The question is simply how long we were together and

VI hat we were doing, and that is all.

11 MR. FeRr.. The wi tness has testified tf.ey did rave a con-

12 veroation and remen~er8 of the sutjects of the conversation

13 and 1 think that is far enough. If we open it by going

14 into those sub:ects that would be an entirely different

15 matter.

16 THE COunT. Counsel has stated they were in noway self-

17 serving and trey were brollgrt out for shOWing the approximate

18 time and the manner of their putting in their time there

19 and the court accepts that statement at its full face

20 value,

24 with that statement--

26 made. VIe nre sin;ply going to the reasonableness cf the

21 MR • Form. Fe can ask for the length of time wi thou.t the

22 necessity of going into it.

23 THE COTJR'T'. 1'os6i'l--ly so but he Vlants to go into it and

DARROW. We 8uarar..tee there will be no such staterr.ent25
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1 rer::errbrance, and all tta.t.

2 THE C01:1R T. You rray do so.

3 lim ~ DARBOVJ. Q. You might state, as far as you recall, any

4 of the topics of the conversation?

5 can:paign thrlt 1;V:o.S tren in progress.

A We spol~e of the

,'r'\'~ -__--..".w~....N-+....::::...~.IiI'i:i.-,.;: •• 'Iff'... ;'\:~-:"';

6 Q. And you say we got off at Second and Fill and that was

7 hmi far fron: the office? A Ttree blocks.

8 Q And wben we got to the 'Higgins Building, what was done?

9 A We went up in the elevator.

10 Q, And where did we g07 A Went to rr,y office.

11 Q Had your office been opened? A No.

12 Q W!'at was done thers at your office? A 1 unlocked tB'e

13

14 coat and hung them in the wardrobe.

15 Q. Did you leays the door open or closed? A I left it

16 open.

17 Q Wbere was 1 ir.. tte rreanwbile?

1 - tal king to ille. i--

A You stood in the door
-_···"'········_--~·----·r···

__~~~~u~~~·~~,iD~"'.r,~r.:..f.iJ..i.'-9:i~,,'t,;:/-~'-.:,~;.-_2

19 Q Wh~lt particular topic, in reference to tre can.paign,

20 was under discw:;aior., if you reGall? A You had a plan

21 'Nher ety we li'ight--
-------------_.

22 'MS. FORD. Just a mOll,ent--the 'iJittneas is

.23 something about "you had a plan whereby" ar.d the ques tion

24 called only fer the 6ubje:jt of the cor.versation.

;,s • I;AF'ROVI. That is right.
and

i.~ • FOHr:. 1 haye no o'bj eetioY'. to the question/as}:; ..
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',V i tness.

the witness be confined merely to the particul ..ir sUbject

which would be hearsay and not pertinent to any issues

befol'e the court :md an atten'pt to cross-exan.ine their own

A Yr:;;s,we

A

'.l II •

in;n:aterial, calling for th·3 substance of a conversati·:.m

TEE COLJ"RT. :,~J. Darrow your staterrent atill applies th::it

that time in referenQe to getting votes?

Q What ones, as you rec~ll any?

HR. FORD. Vie object to that as incompetent, irrelevant and

Q And any particular issues tt?.t were being involved at

were discussing the method of getting votes.

cults ing, if you recall it, if you do not--

THE COURT. Yes 0

MR • DA?ROW. Q, First 1 will ask you, as 1 dici the parti-

cular topi,C, the part of the campaign which we were dis-

without stating the detail of

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9\
10

11

12

13

14

1"' I°1
16 I

17 it is not any self-serving declaration?

18 MR • DARROW. Yes, your Fonor •

19 THE COURT. !{erely for the purpose of fixing the tiree and

20 identifying it?

cr edl t of the story •

1!!R. ro~D. Upon tblt point, your Ponor--

stance and detail which always adds to the credit or dil3-

21

22

23

24

M:l. DA??OW Not entirely that, but by giving the circun-

25 :'$. DARom;. Not any self-s·~rving declarations

26 just to sho';\" the rea~on of it.



·
1 ~J1R. FORD· r3.rdon me •

2 MR • DARROW. All right.

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25·

261

4262



4263

sOught to show by his questions that the testimony of the

taked by the People; they cannot go into all the various

•cases that he wilfully falsifi as. Now, that is s allet hiI'lg

to be brought out on c ross- examination. Thi s wi tness is

in his memory, or that his motives are such and his c 011­

duct is such that he is wilfully false, one or the other;

then they may go into the details 'of it, but this is sim­

ply an attempt -- I do not make any charge it is wilful or

anything of that sort, but it is simply an attempt to fore­

stall the cross-examination and to bring out all the det"ails

in advance of th"e tim e provided fa r that purpose, and

upon the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and imma­

terial, especially is it immaterial at this time; a

vritness is unreasonable, that the vritness is either faulty.

supposed to be belling the truth, he is presumed to be

telling th e truth, and coun sel have no right at the pre­

sent time to add all the various circumstances to add to

details unless oncross-examination the,dverse party has

that presumption, they cannot even introdufe witnesses to

the good character or good reputation of this \~ri tness

unless the reputation of the \rltness has first been at-

MR FORD: And upon that point, solely to say this, that

on examination, in the absence of eny showing to th e con­

trary, that a \vitness is presumed to speak the truth,

and by the cross-ex:amination of the adverse parties, is

to show eLther that th e wi tn ESS is mistaken or in some

25

26

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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14
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16
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18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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witntissis presumed to tell the truth. If he says, tlWe

stood there for an hour or a half an hourtl , he is presumed

to spe,1k the truth until the cont rary appears.

THE COURr: Obj ootion eN erruled. Answer thre question. I

. am or erruling the obj En tion on Jlr Darrow's stat ament

tnere is nothing in it that is self-serving.

~}[R DARHOVl': It is not, but it is for the purpose, as per­

haps ur FOrd suggests, of elaborating. \Vhile the \'Vitness

is presumed to speak the tnlth, still there is no reason

why you cannot shoW' his story reasonable and all that.

THE COURT: I think you have a right to go into those

details here. Obj ection <lTerrlll ro.

JIR APPEL: We wan t to show What lftr DarroVl was engaged in

th at mo ming •

THE COURT: The court has opened the door for you. I

see your point. Go ahead. Read the question.

(ctuestion read.)

A 'What issues?

. Q, Were there any special issues that were getting into

tbe campaign that were spoken of at that time? A yes.

Q, v.nat ones? A The liquor question.

Q, Ves anything said--

THE COURT: Ur Darrow, I think we-, better take the usual

r ec ess at this time. Gentlemen of the jury, bear in

mind your former admonition. We will ta ke a recess fo~

10 minutes.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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A yes.

-discuss that affair with me.

unlocked the doo r and.went in.

I I
",.1'

.. ~.<.~.,. t····"

You m~ proceed,

.And then 'where di d yO'll go? A I went to your offic e.

And state where IVJas? A YouYJent to your office and

Q And for what purpose did we go to the office?

Q. .And state y,nether we continued that discussion, that

or other topics? A yes, we continued the conversation

A You told me if I was going to your office, you would

Q And were we togeth er at th at tim e? A yes.

Q That isbetw'een -- from yours and min e? A Yes.

Q I beli e;e you s aid mine was about three doors from

yours on th e opposite side of the hall? A yes.

Q And di d you .t~o into the office -- my office vii th me?

Q

Q

(Last t~o questions and answers read by the reporter.)

Q ·ur Wolfe, about 1'10'\17 long, as near 8S you can remember,

did we stop at your office t hat morning? A About a min-

ute.

(After rec ess. )

THE COURT: All parti es are pr esel1.t.

l}[R DARROW: What was the 18 st said th ere?

gentlemen.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

line.

Yes, about how long, or about what time it was

Do you know about how long? . A How long we took?

either of us left, as near as you canget at it.

Q

26

alou,3 that
24,­

--------.Q

25

23



1

2

3

A

recall? A You said you

4 MR FORD: .rus t a moment. I object to that upon the

Ayes , youvmntat t het tim e.

And state ';"rhether I went away soon after or mout that

What headquarters? A Socialist headquarters.

time?

quarters.

avray.
~~>-"""'

Q. Was anyt hing sni d as to ",he r e? A yes.

Q, i;1Jhereabouts? A You said you\'\ere goirJ,g to head-

MRDARROW: \1hat was said? A You stated you had to go

HR FORD: Just a moment no obj rotion.

Q Pnd what was said?

ground --

IffiDARROW: First, what ves done, what did you see mE? do?

A Saw you receive a telephone call.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



v.iliile I \'I'a8 there.

1 think 1 want to ask

1 don't understand?L ' ,
u ~nle,rp to wr,a t

Q Did you see Bert Franklin there th~t lliorning? A NO.

Q, Did you see Fr ankl in or Harr in an ::\. t any tin,e tte..t ILorn-

Q Did he COlIe to ttat office that,n:orning ',vhile you 'llere

ing up to that time 1 A Ho.

Q Did .Job Earriman corr.e ther e? A No.

Q State 1Nhe ther or not ';"18 were together fron: the time 1

there and 1 was there? A He didn't enter that office

Q And r(hnt did you do? A 1 went down t:r.e corridor 'oVith

the tin!8 1 left you until 1 hea.rd of tf'e arrest, yes.

you as far as Try door and you wen t on do',vn the corr idol' •

you at your office? A We were together.

got on the car until after the telephone call and 1 left

up to the time you heard of Franklin's aTTest? A From

Q. Were you in the office from the time you got in there

M::1 • DARROW. That is all.

arrest.

Q You I' ell;enber ',vhether you saw them again that day 7

MR. FREDE? 1CKS.

MR • I:APROW. pp to the tine he 'teard of Franklin's

Q, A:c.d clid you see me again up to that tin.e? A No.

A 1 saw Barr in:an tha t nigh t.

Q And you say you learned of the arrest of Franklin about

hOli1 long after you saw ri,e leave you? A Ab:)ut two hours.

one fur tter ques tion: Q Wha twas abOll t th e time th 3.t

1 left you at the d~-r when 1 said 1 was going to tte

16s 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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1 Socialist headquarters? A Very nearly at 9 o'c]ock.

2 Q As near as you reme~ber that ia the time? A Yea.

3 ME. DAnnOW. That is all.

4

5 CROSS-EXAYINATION.

6 !viR.. FREDEFICKS. Q, You saW' ~!l'. 'Carrow almost every day

7 during the progress of the Mcnamara trial, didn't you?

8 A Yes.

9 I Q Did you have some interest in the UcNam:rra trial?

10 A - Intere3t in what way?

11 Q, Any way. A Yes.

12 Q What? A 1 was interested as a rr;err,ber of tbe working _

13 class, interested in a trial of that nature.

A Yesi.
, ."""......._~

Not d~rectly.AYou iii-ere interested in the defense?Q

Q Were you employed by tte defer.se in any capaci ty?
.."", .,-.~,-.,.-.--.,,,.---,~,,,.- ~.. "" .. ...,,".:.'''''''"-'.,-. ,," -"', .~.-~ .._,-'''''".'',''''''~ ..,. ~'''''''.'-.''~­---------_..__.,------_..__._--...

14

15

16 Q In what capacity'? A Conducting the clipping bureau.

17 Q Who enployed your A. ),;r. Harriman.

18 Q :.~r. Harr in an ? A ;,:r. parriman •

19 Q And 1~.,r.en? A 1 cannot fix the date.

20 Q, Approximately"{ A Ear.ly in the progre~s of t:be tr ial or

21 at least early in the progress of t~e case.

22 THE COURT. 1 will have to ask the reporter to read that,

23 I dian 1 t understanCl whether Harr ington or Harr ia,an •

24 REPORTER.
....
JIarr iman .-

Q Early in the SUlLIi,er 7 A Yes.

Q, ',';81'e you employed by the job of by the tin,e7 A

MR • FREDER leKS.25

261
I

I
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Q So much a month or a week, is that the idea? A Yes.

Q Who paid you? A ~11r. Russell, 1 bel ieve.

Q Alwaya? A T'ossibly not, towards· the las t, 1 don't

1

2

3

4

time.
4269

5 recall who paid at the first.

6 Q. Do you menn Mr. Russell paid you towards the las t or

7 you don,t recall towards the last? A 1 recall that Hr.

8 Russell paid me towards the latter part of the trial,

9 1 earlier tban that I don't recall.

10

11

12

13

Q

Q

Q

Q

lltr. Darrow ever pay you any of the time? A No.

Mr. Darrow ever pay you any? A No.

Not under any circumstances? A No.

What Was the nature--you were sin.pl~Lclipping articles
---_.-..- ... .'...-"".......,._"-""._-~•._,".~ .• - ••> .•"'"-...,-.••_,--.••. , ••_.'~~., ',' .' ,,' ,..', - ", .....~.-'-

14 from the newspapers in regard to this trial, is ttat the

15 1 idea? A Yes, 1 Vi3.S overseeing the clipping.

16 1 Q Yes. Well, you were doing somewr i ting for the papers

17 also, '.veren't you, in regard to the trial? A Yes.

18 Q. You were writing up the defense end of it for differmt

19 paper s you subscr ibed for) wer en 1 t you 1 A No.

20 Q You were not? A No. 1 was wri ting news stories.

21 Q You were writing it frorr: the defense's side? You were

22 in the pay of the defense) weren't you? A ~lot in the

23 pay of the defense for the purpose of wri ting any articles.

24 Q You were not? A No.

Q Well, then, your writing of articles had nothing to do

- .. _---.~ ",L,._ '''", ' -.'_, .-,,",.-,""', ........ -.~,.- ..

25

2G I Wi 1fu-~-y~~;;-~~~;~'~-"~~ ~~~-"'~~~6'e'-of the defense? A No.

I.
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1 Q. That didn't influence you, tbe fact you were employed

2

3

4

5

-6

7

8

MR. APPEL' Wait a n;orr.ent--that is objected to as not cross-

exardna tion.

MR. FREDERICKS' The Witness adid he was not writ:i.ng

.articles in the case of tte defense, that is the point 1--

ViR. APrEL, It is not croBs-examination, it is ilnmaterial.

~

i
I

I
I
I
I

9 THE COURT. ,...,verruled.

10 MR • APPEL' Wee xc ep t •

11 (Last question read by the reporter.)

12

13

A No.
......
MR • FREDERICKS'

A No,s,'r)
I

Q. You wr ito for the Appeal to tReason .//\ I

14 Q What papers did you 'i,rite for7 A About 300 papers and

15 magazines •

16 Q All Socialist papers? A No.

17 Q Any Socialist papers? A Yes.

Q, You were very partisan on that side, weren't you, :i:r.

Wolfe? Al tr:ed to write r..v atories according to n;y inter-
---~----- ~" ,- - " -- --' -,._._--_.,

pretution of tbe struggle, an:llcertainly wrote them from

the viewpoint of the working class.

18

19

20

21

22

23

Q

Q

Largely socialist papers, were tbey'?
,... ._...._,." ..._ ....<."._-_.__."."T--••. :,.".~ .. ~ •. "." ..."-""'''-'-~ ~--''' "-v', •• ""'_"_'_••.• ' ••.,-,.~J"

And labor union papers? A Yes.

A Yes.

24 Q And you ivrote your stories and your entire attitude

25 was one of sympathy wi th the 1I-c!1anl:3.ras) wi th the defense

26 in tbat case) wasn't it? A One of 6yn~pathy with labor,
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1 Q Well, it was also one of sympathy with the McNamaras

THE COURT: It didn't strike me th at way. Read the ques-

THE COURT: Obj ection Ol erruled.

IffR ROGEHS: .rust a moment; that question is misleading, if

or something of that kind, and to t hat extent the ques-

Yes, I

I didn,t recognize them as representing labor.

tion. (Last question read by the reporter.)

A

tion is misleading, the YiI'itness has not so said.

dividuals, with the cause of labor.

't Well, you recognized them es representing the cause

of labor, to a certainf!x:tent in that matter, did you not?

in that case,':vasn't it? A Not specifically with the in-

ground it is not c ross- ex:mnination; it is incompetent,

i ITelevant and immaterial.'

cles. RoYT, this question assumes that he has said

well, you were 'tJriting articles in the pay of the defense,

your Honor please, and I think he has answered in this way:

he has said that he was paid for running a clippi~~ bureau,

but he was not paid by the defense for vrri ting any arti-

UR APPEL: We exc ept.

(Last question read by the reporter.)

•
MR,APP:EL: Wait a moment. v;e obj rot to that upon the

}![R FREDERICKS: Well, you were '.rrriting articles and paid

by the defens e for labor in th edefense, were you?
,/

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

think it is susceptible of that construction.25

26 tion is well taken. Obj ootion sustained.
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1 J,~R FREDERICKS: Who paid your offic e rent, 1fr Wolfe?

Paid by thedefense wasn't it? A _yes.
-", " _~.._~ ,....,.,.;.._.._""'''''~..,...._~''''"''''', _, _.,-.__ _._ '''...,'''_ ."...,...",.",-""., ,"'; ..~""., -.,....'~~., ...,. .. ,

That is wh ere YOlHIrOt e your s tori es, wasn f tit?

A No.

I don't know

You di dn 't p wit?Q,

Q,

Q,

A

5

2

3

4

weren't you? A No.

In short, you were the pUblicity man for the defense,

you used, stationery and all that, ViaS thedefense's

material, wasn,t it? A No.

,,:
Up there in the 0 f'fic e of the d efens~?'The mate~i~r""""

A •6

7

8

9

10

11

12 Q,

13 fo •

Did they have any such man? A Not t hat I ever heard

And paid by the defense, that is the only income you

had, vresn't it? A No.

llR PPPEL: Your Honor, he has not said hewas paid by the

V.Titil'\3' impartial navs, is that the idea? A Writing it

as I said, from the viewpoint of labor.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

't

A

Q,

You had 300 papers and magazines you were writing for?

yes.

And you'llere occup~ing th e offic es for the defense

22 defense for that purpose. We obj ect because it msumes

the witness has said.

exarrtination.

contrary to what the '[fitness hes stated, and, not c ross-

J,~R FOBD: We have a right to assume the contrary of vh

23

24

25

26
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this.

answer has cured it. Obj ~tion overruled.

(Last question

(Last QUestion- andRead it, Mr Report ere

From the nenspapers, income from the newspapers and

From wri ting these s toties? A yes.

yes.

Q

A

Q But generally, the material that you sent, yousent

free, did you not? A' No, Isent it free to the papers,

'Well, you'vvere, if I may use an e:<:pression, boo sting

two 0 r three times and h as stated the contrary of that

thedefense's side of the proposition in that trial, and

answer read by the reporter.) Yon had further income?

MR APPEL: VIe exc apt.

THE cour~: If there ~s any vice in the question, the

statement, and assuming contradiction of the witnE5s'

timon;! to which the vlitness has not testified.

magazines; is that the idea? A In some instances, yes.

THE coum: Let me have the question first.

read by the reporter.)

:MR ROGERS: The preceding question shows the vice of

that is '\Yhat you were hired for, -.rrerentt you?

HR APPEL: We object to that upon the ground it c:asum€5 a

state offacts not testified to by the Yfitness, on the second

grolUld, it is not cross-examination, and upon the further

ground that the witness has already answ'ered the question

:MR FREDERICKS:

1
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8
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THE COURT: I think the question has alrea~:r::een asked

and anSVler ed in subs t anc e.

MR FREDERICKS: I pr eSUTIle the COU1't is going to sustain

it.

THE COURI': Obj ootion sustained on that ground.

1m FREDERICKS: Were you in the court room during that

trial very much? A I think I was in the court room onoe.

~ Only once? A possibly tvrlce.

~ And you vvere vrri ting news of the trial, and you 'It ere in

the court room just once? A yes.

Q Wh ere did you get your news? A I got it from various

sou:rees. I didn't write detailed stories of the trial,

as itvJas not necessar.f for me to be here each hour.

~ You got most of your material from :Mr Darrow himself,

did you not? A No sir.

~ No. vVhere did you g et it? A I got a 1 arg e po !tioIl_

of it from the daily papers, from the dailynewspa~~rmen

and some from repres Bntatives who came here.

~ AlloVT me to ask you ";fhat portion of your income was

derived from thedefense? A' I should s ay --

~ During that time? A Possibly a third or one quarter•
. ._,_~._....·A.',·--.'..r ,_ .•

Q. Is tl1a tall? A That is about all.

Q The r est you got from the magazines and papers that

yousent articles to? A I got a portion fran them.

Q. I didn't intend to go into another

thos e tvro employments.. You were also employed by th e
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1 Socialist party, were you not? A Ho.

2 (l Poli tical party? A yes.

3 Q Well, vrhat is the difference between the Socialist

4 party and th e Socialist poli tical party? A The National

5 Socialist Party.

6 Q. The Hational SOoielist party and that was a part of

7 your income? A yes.

8 Q A rart of it was from thedefense in the JJcl'ramara case

9 and a part of it from wri ting articles? A yes.

10 Q, VJh.at portion of it was from writingerticles?

11 A I am not able to say. I paidvery little attention to

12 suchdetails.

13 Q Very small portion, was it not? A No, I should say

14 one third.

15 Q Well, 1rr Wolfe ,),9~1~~__ a_~ reat"admi:rer () f ur .1)~rroy.. , ..---_.,-_....~......

16 are you not? A I am.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
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•

------
-------

Did you ever

.j.'ulrr.es •

Possibly a week; two weeks, was it as n,uch as two v/eeks?

wo n t say. -~,--~~"""'.-~-.~"'.".-..- ~>
T

'Probably four or five

MR • FREDERICKS. VI i thdraw the quest io'n.

exarr.ination •

A

learn that he was suspected of complicity in this offense?

Q NOVI, th is time when you say you wer e in the--this mornin a

that he ever suspected him or he ever knew it, not cross-

has not in any manner ever testified on direct examination

Q And were you at that time? A Yes.

Q. When did you first learn it, the very firat time?

A Several days after the arrest of Franklin.

of the 28 th--by the way, ',,:hen did you fir s t 1earn that f.ir.

Darrow was suspected of complici ty in this cr 1me?

MR. APrEL· Wait a moment--we object to that, the witness

Q, And who did you learn it from? A 1 n.nj not able to say 0

Q. How many days after Franklin's artest was it? A 1

MR. FREDERICKS. Referring to Mr. Darrow. A Yes.

couldn't say positively, a week._----------.. ~

MR • DARPOVl. Read that ques tion •

(Last question read by the reporter.)

Darrow? A Ot: J poss ibly half a dozen times.

Q

Q Pow many tinJes did you come down on the car with ~\~r.

Q. Pal f a dozen times he wal }:ed wi th· you up to the office? .

A

A Not always.

Q, 'How n.any timera did he walk With you up

1
a

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Q Later on you re1ated sOIl.ething that occurred at sonle

ether tin;e when he came up to the office? A You are

asking me something about walking with him at other times

and 1 am answering questions along that line.
\...

Q Weren't you on direct examination relating something
•

that occurred at anotrer time aside from the morning of the

28th "1 A No.

Q You are sure of that? A rositive.

Q When Was it first called to your attention that this

thing occurred on the 28th, what you have related?

A That this thing occurred on the 28th?

Q What you have related, that you were up With ~~ir. Darrow

13 that rr.orning, when was that first called to your attention

fically.

A 1 donlt recall the conversation. 1 probably spoke

the events.

occurred to myself.

Q And who called it to your at tent ion? A 1 th ink it

Q Why, how 7

Q If you recalled that he was up there that morning?

A ~iot that he W2.0 there.

Q Gener al1.y 7 A 1 think 1,1,. Darro"!; asked me if 1

-
:p,arrow conc.erning it. -------------------

.. ~-.;.'-"""""'"' ........~"""'~ ...~.-........_-~.~ .. ~ \" ..

Q Wl:at was the conversation? A 1 8ou1dn't state speci-

after the 28ub? A 1 think about a week later.

Q That was t·he conversation as· ne::.r as you remen.ber it?

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 him about the Franklin matter,,·

2 Q You mean the arrest of Franklin? A Yes, sir"

3 Q. W'rat was there that brought up the converoation between

4 you and :11r. Darrow as to he and you being in the offi ce to-

5 gether that morning? A 1 heard whisperings of ;'~r. Darrow

6 be'ir>..g suspected of con'plicity. 1 went direct to 'tim

7 get a direct statement from him. ,",r ••.-------.,f',l
8 Q He made this statement, is that it? A 'ge didn't n:ake ......

9 any statement" He made the atatemen t to me concerning.:-.-

10 Fr an k1 in's cas e" _...-'~-,,·,..·,,·"'·······'''''~.'"w,,_'''_ .. v.-----~--'-.·-.-~ ..,..--'
11 Q Wh a t did he a ay ?

12 MR. APPEL· 71 ai t a momen t--we ob j ec t to that ~ your Honor,

13 as not cross-examination; it is inco[L:petent, irrelevant an

14 immaterial. Fe can only say that he talked because it

15 refreshes his memory as to the time in question. Fe

16 cannot call tbe declara tiona of the defendan t to tim

17 because it is not cross-examination and for the reason

18 they, thems elves J your Houor,' obj ec ted to any self-0 erv ing

19 declarations on the part of :\lr. Darrow.

20 MR. FREDERICKS Let we wi fudraw the question for a ffioment ..

Q Several weeks later? A 1eo.,------------------------

21 1 will withdraw it. Q now, when was it that you

22 talked over With :,1r. narrow this occasi on which you have

23 testified to about being in the office that morning with

24 him, that is what 1 want to know? A 1 think that was __"""'"t'o

25 several weeks later" ~_._-__.__., .._..~,_ .._----_~..------_.~~

26
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------_._ - .

Q 'l!el1, tr'is was on tbe 28th of November, was it before

A It was sonietimegether, when di~ he first?

Q Wh en was the fir s t t iITe th'3_ t you ever hear d that Frank-

A He spoke of talking concerning his complicity. __.

);ffi • FOHD. We submit it.

(Last ~luestion read by the reporter.)

that particular feature that first occasion.
___.,;..~~....,~....,. ....~_ .. "".._',"~...,_,.~ __~ ..._.~,.,~ .."~._--.'~~~ .."_' ....... ··,..,,·,··.""",."",,.·'''••..-R...., ...._,.,_,__ ._.

q:..·-i.i;har-{ea:t·~·;~d·id you speak of on th e fir s t 00 cas ion '1 _---,,0[

Q ~ow many weeks later? A 1 am not able to say.

Q It Vial:) on the first o8casicn'? A No, we didn't speak

it is not cross-examination. It calls for conversations

A Iw~n~ to him--

MR. APPEL. Wait a morr.ent--we object to that on the ground

TEE COU'R T • Obj ec tion overrul ed •

1ffi • APPEL. We except.

which would be self-serving declarations.

lin said he was up there that morning and got that n:oney

from Darrow? A 1 never heard he said

Chr is tmas? A 1 am not able to fix ito ~------,---~_.

Q You never heard that he said it? A No.

Q. Well, then, how did it COD,e that you and Darrow

1m. FREDERICKS. Q Did he say on that first occasion-- ~

did he call your attention to the fact on that first occa­

sion, that he and you were up there in the office to-

Q Well, now, how much later as near as you can fix it?

A Probably several weeks, several weeks later.----------_.....-......~~ .........~.......-...--...-<---_..........,~-'~ .... -.-.,,~.~ ...,.~~" ...,._,.......-...-.....-...-,"".~-
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Now, if the witness should answer, your Honor,MR • APPEL.

talking about where Darrow was that morning before he

down on Main street'? ,._.---.~ _- ..~-... . -.." -..- ..-._-_ --.~,.

MR. APPEL· Tait a moment--we object upon the ground, your

Honor, that the witness has not stated that they were talk­

ing about marrow and he being there, and it is not crOSG­

examination at all. Asking for a conclusion or opinion of

the witness.

MR. FORD. The court will recall--

anything that :vir. Darrow said to rim as to any statement

being niade or having heard anywhere, giving him inforn:ation

that i,l!. Darrow was there on Third or Main atreet, 1 don't

wish to argue-- he will have to come and state all the con"':'"

versation, being a self-s'3r~Jing statement and they have kept

us from saying that.

Now, here they have the same set of facts not

testified to by the witness and tbe witness \'lould naturally,

would have to state, your Honor, what the real conversation

is. We will be entitled to show that, and under the ruling

announced by your Honor, that we could not show the 8e1 f­

serving statement, that rule n;ust work batt. ways. It must

shut out those 6 ta tements. 'He can ask him in a general way­

MR. FORD. If the Cour t pI eas e--

THE COurt T· Let ll;e have the ques tion aGain.

(Last question read by the reporter.)

26 ?1'L-iE COUR T. Objection overruled.
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1 ~rt. APPEL. We except.

2 1m • FREDERICKS· You understand the question?

A 1 th ink :,ir. Dar row spo ke of th is

A Yes.

A After Franklin had taken the stand, after F-ranklin had "IF"
~.{f"

Q Please answer it.

7

3

4

5 after the beginning of the trial. ------ ----__--~

6 MHo. FREDERICKS· Q Oh, after the beginning of this trial?)"

8 testified.
l

9 Q Well, then, the first til'Iie that it was ever called to 1\
10 your attention th3.t you and Darrow were up there that

11 morning, on the morning of the 28th of november, was after (

12 Franklin took the stand here in this case, is that right?

13 A 1 never lost track of the fact that we were together

14 that morning.
.-- .....,-."._'_.. '-""""',,~,, "."'" .... -",,- "

15 Q Why did yeu have rtthat in your memory? A Because every

16 inc id ent of that da:y_.~.~._.iT~EX.y~y~.dLy.eryfixed in my
--------~~ .......,~.~~ .•.,.~.•.,-

17 memory •
-' .......-----

great blows that fe11 during the tl'ial. .-.--------

20 Q Yes, but you had no idea up until you had of Franklin's

21 testimony here on the stand, :.1r. Wolfe, you

22 that Franklin was going to Bay that he got that money from

23 Darrow that u;orning, did you? A No.--

24 Q ~h en why should you remen;oer all. th at happened that

25 morning? A I remelLoer wha.t happened that u:orning very

26 distinctly because of the fact that it was a mon.entouB

19

18 Q Why should it be? A Because that is one of the two_-Jt'
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(

•
I:

=•.,.,
)

•
~

I, ••
~

A
•

!
110. l

l:rot until you heard Franklin's testimony in court, that

......

Q Well, it didn't occur to you that it was a momentous

occ as ion.

occasion that l,~r. Darrow had anything to dO'with ;.:r. Franklin

Q

or that ;i[r. Durrow--tha t anybody was going to charge

Darrow with giv ing Fr an kl in any money that morning '?

MR. FREDFRICKS. on that morning. 1 'Nithdravl' the queBtion

MR. DARROW. Just a menient--you mean any particular part

of it, a"tt, the office or anyWhere else? 1 object to that.

is the first ti~e you thought of that? A 1 didn't hear

his testimony.

Q Fe asked you that three weeks, you said, after the

is that not correct? A No.--------------

Q Didn't you say that 7 A No. ----.-.-~.-~.....- ...

Q, Wtat did you say tba t 1':e asked you three weeks before the

in order that it may not be confusing_ Q Did :,!r. D"'-rrow

ever talk to you, now, about where you and he were on the

rr.orning jus t befor e Fr an kl in's arres t 7 A 'P'e ask ed me.

anything the record is the best evidence.

lIR • FflF.DSnl CKS - Let's have the ev idence •

arrest--after the arrest?

1,8. ArrEL. Pe said trey talked.

Q Until you heard of it'? A Until 1 heard of it.

Q Did [,;:. Darrow ever talk to you in regard to where he

was that morning, the mar ning before the arrest?

MR. APT'EL. Wait a moment--"Ne Object to that, if he aaid
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1 THE COURT. All right. Let's have the record.

21m. FREDF.RICKS. Let's have the record and see if he didn't

3 talk about this occurrence three 'Heeks after.

4 1m. APPEL. You said talked, that is not the question.

5 THE COtTRT· Let's have the record read.

6 (Re~ord read as indic:3.ted.)

7 MR. FREDEPICKS. Oh, after it was the time when ;{;r. Darrow

8 called your attention to the occasion of you two 'being up

9 there. Now, you see you said tha~was about three weeks

10 after the arrest.

11 MR. APrEL. No, 1 submi t he dicin I t say anyt hing of the

12 kind. •

MR • ArrEL. He has answer ad that.

11m. FREtER1CKS' 1 think he has answered it two ways.

.MR • FEEDER1 CKS· Q What do you 8 ay it was now When it

was trat \1r. Darrow first called your attention to it?

13

14

15

16

17 MR • DARFOW. Now, calling your attention to him being

£
I
;:
•
•
j
~

I
~,
•

18 in the office, on the street or what part of it, tnCtt is

19 the question,. so he wont be confused.

20 ::V;R • FREDERICKS. 1 asked this ques tion, when he firs t dis-

21 cussed wi th ;·.!r. Darrow tr.e question as to his and ;,Jr. Darrow's

22

23

24

25

26

presence in the offioe that morning, the morning of Franklint~

arrest when this witLeBB and '.:r. Darrow first wsnt over that

Bubject, and he said it was about three weeks after the 88th.
after

now, 1:e says that it Wa6 not untiJ/he had heard Franklin's

testin:ony tere i'!lcourt. 1 '.vant to know wrict is rip'ht...,
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25 were toget~er that ~orning, is that correct?

26 un. ArrEL. No, your Honor, 1 subrriit--

There WeI' e several par ts of it

The reading is very plain. Q. Now, :,~r.

A Sometime after Franklin's testirr.ony.

yes.A

About?

tion.

a correct statement.

side?

in t@.e office onthe morning of the 28th J when did you first

THE COl.1RT. 1 think the reading of the record stows U'ere

is son:e confusion and you are entitled to a direct ques-

tha.t Vlere discussed, as 1 gather from t1:.is wi tness, whether

1 w~s onthe street, or when 1 r.tppeared there or how long

~ffi. DAFROW. 1 object to that because 1 don,t think it is

some part of it was called to his attention Within a week

the question as to whether or not you and he were together

1 was there or wta t par ticular part VidS called to his

att~ntion or who called it to his attention. He said

cussed the questiGn as to whether or not you and ;r,r. Darrow

Q In this case? A In this case. -------------41(
Q Here not over six weeks ago, then, or a montt,

MR • FREDERICKS.

Q, The case started on May 15th, it was after that'? A

Q, That is t:-e first time that you and ~.tr. Darrow ever"dis-

Wolfe, when VUiS it that you first discussed with Mr. Darrow

discuss that with :.:r. Darrow? A 1 am not able to fix the

date.

or so.
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1 MR • FREDER leKS. Well, let's see if that is correct.

2 1m • ArrEL· He has not s::lidYl'hether or not that W01)ld

3 indicate that the Witness or l.~r. Darrow had a doubt at all

4 about it. T1:e wi tnesB says they discussed tb e fact that

5 they were there, not as to whether or not they had been

6 th~re. HOW, that is not fair to ttis witness ..

7 MR. FREDERICKS· Let us asl: the cl.uestion ar..d see.

8 MR. ArrEL The Witness said "we discussed the fact that we

9 had been there", not as to whether 01' not we had been there,

10 5,S to whether there W:iS any doubt at all.

11 MR. FREDERICKS· Let's ha~Te the questibn read.

12 T~"E cOtm T· 'Read the question. (Last question read by

13 the r epor tel' • )

14 THE COURT. 1 think that Appel'S objection is well taken.

15 Sus tained 0

16 MR .. F?EDERICKS. Q. W'hen iV';,;"s t!'1e first time that you and

17 ;.!r. Darrow first discussed the q1.'e stion of you and ::r. DarroW'

18 being toget~,er ttat morning-? A We didn't discus8 the

19 ques tien.

24 ~ After his testimony.and not before, that is the point

20 Q rm til after Frankl in r:lQ. tes ti fied, you rr.e an? A Tter-e

21 was no discussion.

22 Q When did you talk about it? A At son;e period after

26 Q, All right. ,(kw, wt:3.t die. you lJiear: When yOt:. E=~id

A 1 think not. --------

Fr a.nkl in's teG t i mony • ---.._-_~.__.. <•• -,. "'-~

1 (llli getting at.

23

25
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1 yOl) ciid. discuss the que8tion of your being togetbertha t

2 mornine; about three -\veeka after the arrest? A J.. don't

3 think the record says 1 used the expression three weeks.

4 Q You said approximately thres weeks. A 1 thinK not.

5 Q, V:h3.tever the record will sr;o\V it wi~l show. Now--

6

7

8

•you didn't n-.eanat that time y011 were talking abo1...,t the same

tirr.e tba t you are talking now J that it was after Frankl in h .. d

tes tified, you would not stretch that three weeks into

9 seven months J would you? W2S it before Christrras?

10 MR. Al'PEL· That is argumentative.

11 THE COTJR7. NO....I, the other quest~on--what is your question

12 now, ':':aptain, was it before ChrietlT,c.s?

13 t,m. FREDERICKS' I want to know positive--l shouldn't use

14 the word "stretch"--l want to know whether he meant by

15 three weeks the period Which bad elar.;sed fron, the 28th

16 of November until sometime after the 15th of May?

17 A 1 don,t think the record stows that 1 said three weeks.

18 Q Vir a t do you say 1 A Sever a.l VI '2eks. -- = •._----~-~•. ,,_.-._--- f

19 Q Well, then, do you mean by several weeks the period

20 between the 28th day of Hovenber and the time that Frar~k-

21 IiI' testified, is tr.at what yot: meCln by severa) weeks?

22 A Yes. --- ------- -...._.~ -
~...... .,.." ·0....

./

23 Q That is vihatycu IT.ean 'by several Yweeks. Well, all rigrt •.

24 Q Tr.en, as tre matter atar.ds noVi, tbe first time that you

25 ever discussed this n2.tter With ',~r. Darrow as

26 had t<:>r\tl' f ied, l'S tb t t'l.e '" .... t • ..,-~... ,,,..... L .. ay ~... s ?J1 O.S !
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1 }tn • DA'PF'OW. What way?

2 lJfn ~ p-r-r'L' '11 t=l 'h '... J.
I~' ~I.. H t- r.. I " o. J e C t, •

3 MR. FREDr:RICy.S. 1 Vi ill ar.:plify the q,uebtion. The matter

4 of tl:is witness and ';:;.-. Darrow boing up in tre office to-

5 gether just before "~r. Darrow vven't clown on Main street where
I

6 th~ arrest occurred. Now, the first time tbat you dlsCUGSOi

7 that or talked that ov~r \vitI' Hr. narrow was after Franklin

8 testified? 1 want to be sure we have got nat correct., is

9 that correct? A Thclt is my impression.

10 Q That is your in.pression? ~ou are sure about it, aren't

11 you?

12 W"). tN·'POW. 1 obj ed t to tha t.

13 lrR. AFPEI.. It h<.ts beer~ asked t"v'!enty tirr,es at least.,
14 llR 0 FREIER leKS. All l' 18ht, 1 think '170 have got the si tua-

15 tion now,. thc1.t it is crysta11ized to a certain extent.

16 Q you rerrerr:ber back_, " then--let's see, recember, Januar:/

17 Fev..ruary, Varch, Apr il, May--ycu renember back for six

18 months about coming inon the street car tbat rrorning and

19 ab:nJ_t where you stodd and abotlt where 'tt'. Darrow stood, do

20 you? A Yes,

21 Q, -And you rerr-ewter where he got or, the car that" n.ornir.g?

22 A Yes,

23 Q And you remer:.cer tack six month~ Vlh:-~t you talked about?"

A Yes.

c: And that you can.e down toge tb 81' '? A Yes.

26 Q And you rerr.6r:-ber back 3ix rronths about the people gett·

24

25
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"

25 Q Is it possible that you did'? A He n;igtt h::'1.ve 'teen on

there 1 h:J.d ridden wi tb :,ir. Darrovr?

---.........-----

is argumentative, your Eonor ..

That is gettirg at the reasons of 'tte \Vitn

A Every event of that day sticks in my memory ..

FREDER 1r. KS ..

isn,t that s07

merory7
•

for b is 18 mory ..

Q Well, what was there to call your attention to that

fact at that particular time that makes t1'.at stick in your

on the car that you have nwned here and the people getting

off? A Yes ..

on t!'e street car with i,ir. Darrow W,lS only an ordinary oc-

Q ":'lut ttat didn't concern the case, did it, the cordng' dO\fl

Q Every event.. A Every event concerning the case and of

irr'port<.:.r.ce ...

THE COURT' Overruled.

(l,as t que s tion r cad by the r epor ter • )

A The question seen',s to me involved.the a;3sertion made

casion that you h3.d indule;ed in a balf· a dozen otter times,

MR. FHEDFRICKS. Q Several times before. A Yes.

MR • APPEL. That

Q And sometimes after? A 1 don,t recall

Q 1:0 you know whether you did or not? A 1 don't recall.

Q Well, 1 arr; no t jus tel ear 1 get your answer. Do you

n;ean that you don,t ren:erLber wbether you did? A 1

tbe car, tbe a ame car.

remen:ber of r icUng with hin, after trat time.24
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it tae be en answer ed'O

testimony'?

Q IS it possible trat you did 3.fter that? A Ye8.

Let

A I donlt recall speci-Q And you don,t remsLber it?

f ically •
•

Q 1 mean when you wer e in conipany with him and you wer e

together 7 Aves.

MR • FBEDrn I CKS • The po in t is th is, your Honor;

THE COURT· 1 think ;,ir. Appel is rigrt atout that. 1 think

THE caUR T • Yes.

Q. That would be later than thie, wouldnlt it'? A Yes ..

been asked th3.t and r.e has stated, your Honor, that he knew

a few days after ;,:1'. Darrow--there was suspic ion trat he

Q Well, what was tbere in connection with your coming

down with ;,:,'O Darro';; tra t lloxnr,g tha t bad any connec tion

gro1..tnd it bas been asked and answered. The witness has

wha tever in your n, ind Vi i th tre tappen ings or the arr es t of

Mr. Franklin up until the time '::hen you heard Franklin's

that in any way ;vould. conne c t the ac tual cord ng dovm to t

UR. APrEL. '\'Tait a rr.orrent--your Honor-- we object upon the

the reporter read the question.

(L,-~8t question read by tbe reporter.)

MR .. FRF.D'FRICKS. That is the point, your Por!or, that for

was conr..ectedwitt the matter, the matter fixed in his mind.

six rr.or.trs there had been nothing in this Witness's nina.

MR. FRE:D;::P leKS" cone over?
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in this case j it never becan-;e a llIatter of interes t

became pertinent; it never became a matter of interest

This Was not an incident in connection

to tr e ques tion?

md that fastened it on his mind, that people had cone to

you W at: t to call it that, or the inc iden t that occurr ed.

it was one of the two blows that fell upon their cause

that fastened it on his rrind.~e stated that in the begin-'

testimony ~ade it an incident.

Darrmv gave him that n:oney up in that office. It never

office on a morning with :.r.r. rarroV'l tljat the tragedy, if

on that day. There W8.S nothing to take tbs.t out of the

MB • DAFROW. In addition to that, your Honor, this witness

indelibly inlpressed upon his mind, isn't ttat an answer

conrr:onplace until he learned th3.t Frank] in had said that

any n;ore than e:lting his breakfast W~lS ur..tiJ ~.~r.FFanklin's

stated VI i thin a few days he heard 'i t wb ispered arour.d or

during that trial, that every incident of that day was

l:eard staterr.ents that 1 was in SOILe we.y connected with it

him in refarence to it, in reference to rry being there and

MR • FRFDF.F IC'KS •

n ing of Captain Freder ic ks '8 exanina tion •

!(R. FBEDEP1CKS· That is not the point, your Honor •

in his menory uIjtil he learned tbat six monU:s afterwards.

THE COIJR T. Cap tain Fr e del' ick s, basn' t th is witness all' eady
day ,

stated rthat every incident of tllat"because of tbe fact that

26 ','Vi tness Frankl in has never 68.id, a"'~ording to frio
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1 knowledge, has neveI' said trat Darrow gave him tha t money

2 on tl'e n'orn ing befor e :.~j'. Dar,row VI en t down an Main 6 tr eet •

3 He has never said that according to this witness's

4 men.ory and knowledge, until a few weeks ago here onthe

5 stand, therefore, there was absolutely nothing in tris case

6 in" any way, shape or form that made that eorring in on the

.7

8

9

car any diffet ent fror: any other co llJing in on the car.

MR • DAT-mOW' Now, your H'onor--

TFE COLffiT, That may be a matter of argullent, it seens to

10 me •

11 MR. DARr.OW, 1 don,t want that to go uncr_aller:ged. That

12 is one part of tJhis Witness's staterrent, te says in,mediate-

13 ly trereafter he heard rumores of rr;'Y connection With it.

14 Now, it don't fo)} ow fron: tl: at that he would knew Fr ank) in

15 said he got the n.oney there t1:at rLorning, but that 1 W3.S

16 on the street that morning at the time of the arrest. Pe

17 said he heard rurr:ors about it immed.iately and it f=~stened

18 its el f on 1: is mind" 1t doeen' t follow i he mit;h t never

19 rave heard ur>til recently thJ. t Frank] in clailLed t'hut.

20

21

TPE COUR T, Th e rr:at ter has ceen-­
MR. FREDERICKS,

All right, 1 wittdraw that question. 1 see

22 the COUl't is going to rule against IT.-:{so 1 wittdraw it to

23 save tilLe. Q NO';;, ;~r. Wolfe, ~ir. Darrow has put me

24 somewr,a.t mdoubt, as 1 understand you, you never a]luded

25 to this matter of your comin~ in With Darrow--with :,~r.

26 Darrow, yeu never alluded to trat urtil after FrankJiD
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1 the Btand 1

2 MB. Appel. W·ai t a rrlonlont--we otje8t upon the ground th at

3 the'i'litness has answered several tin,ea the Bame qus6tion.

4 1lR. FREDERICKS' Yes, 1 think he has J but :,~r. Darrow seems

5 to have a different view 0 f it •

7

}!R : DAFiBOW .
TEE COTJR T.

you both;

MR • FOPD •

'H:e record showo it. 'the Court agrees with

10 question.

11 1lR. FREDli;RlCKS' 1 Vi ill change tr,e question. Q. Did you

12 ever talk to anybody else abovt it, about being with

13 nar r ow? A No. 1;./'.-'-,."".".--.....-------.-----.,,,...,,.-",, .... .~..,,,,,.",~""'=""

up there with Ii::. T'arrow that rr-orning at any time? .",;.....,~~~,.~
i,

AWith no or...e'1

nave you ever talked to anyone else, ever, except .7ilr. >-J
Darrow under any cir cums tances or any oecas ion about being" ,
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Q,
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Q Where and with whom? A Mr Harriman.

Q Mr Harriman. That was after you talked with Mr Darrow,

was it? A NO, I think it was before.

Q That was after Franklin had testified, vms it?~/

•MH. DARROv7: I obj set. Let him say wh ether it was after.

In view of the ,vi tn €Ss' previous answers

I beg your pardon. A I did not mean that.Q

Q I took it fram your previous answers you did. \Vhat

did you mean? A I have not kept aTU track of th e cou It

proceedings, have not read them, don't know where he just

did make his statements.

Q It was after th e t rial started? A It might have

Q 'Nell, was there ever to your knowledge, any

unde. 'r Heaven by Franklin or anybody else before the gr

after the tr ial started, or might have been information

that came to me of some grand jury proceedings. -

made th estatement.

I have a right to ask him whether it was afterwards.

didn't mean that.

A It was after the information came to me t hat Fr~.uiklin

HR FREDERICKS:

UR RO GERS : Read th e ans\ver.

MR :EREDERICKS: I have a right to ask I eading questions.

THE COURr: yes. Obj ection 01 erruled.

(Answer read.)

1m FREDERICKS: In court, I presume you mean. here? I
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jury that Mr Franklin had claimed to have been up in that

office that morning with Ur Darrow?

1m APPEL: We obj rot to that, your Honor. The \yitn ESS is

only saying that some statement was made to him, or that

he heard that Franklin claimed such and such thi~ s. He

has not testified he_ knows th ere was any testimony or

v.here he made the statement or how the persons who gave

him th e information, ~ot it. Now, he. is asking whether

or not under Heaven, there "''8S any suchevidence as that.

MRFREDERICKS: I will. cut ou t "under Heaven It.

lJrR APPEL: Cut the whole queB'tion out and then you will be

more in order. But the question, your Honor, is not ad­

dressed to the answer of the witness, and it is not c ross­

exara.ination, and it is immaterial, and it is argumentative,

asking him for matters on ·which he does not pr etand to

have any knowledge, except that information c arne to him.

UR FORD: Now, if the. court please, we have a .right

THE COURI': Obj ection overruled.

1m APPEL: We ex:c ept. NOVl, 1 at us he er th at question

with "Heaven" in it. (Question read.)
.1

_ .....:.0. ~•...I knmY nothing of the testimony. -A

Q. You never heard that until Franklin -- until this

case started, did you?

URDARROW: I obj ect to that, never heard \7hat?

UR FREDERICKS: Heard that Franklin claimed to hare

up in that office.
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1 MR DARROW: He h as answered that.

2 lA:R FREDERICKS: yeS, I think so. I think he has, but Mr

3 FO rd thinks he has not.

4 lJR FORD: He has made several stat ement shere, your Honor,

Ford does not.

statement, and he had discussed it 'with l[r Harriman. Now,

the point vve are trying to make is, did the wi tn ESS hear

et that time that Franklin claimed to have met Darrow in

UR FREDERICKS: Read the question.

him answer it again. It can do no harm.

TEE COURT: If th ere is any serious doubt about it, let

•
one time when lir Franklin had testified in court, and then

he then discussed it with J,rr Darrow and also testified

he has said he first learned about this matter about

that at another time he had -heard Franklin had made a -

hear any statement ~ before this trial started; did you

ever lrer any claim made that Franklin was in the office

wi th 1fr Darrow that morning.

fice with Mr Darrow. Now, the question is, did you ever

(Last two questions read.)

llTR FREDERICKS: In the morning, prior to his arrest.

A I am unable tocl early fix the date 'when I heard it.

th e offic e in the mornfng during the time or period cover­

ed by th:iis witness' testimony, that hehad been in the of-

TEE COURT: I think he has answered that question.

1m FREDERICKS: I think he has, tooi your Honor, but Mr
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1 kept no watc h over th e t ri al. ----.
t\296---------" ....-

2 Q I understood you to say it was after the trial started,

3 and that is correct, is it?

4 MR DARROW: I obj ect to that, he has also said --

5 ]'vlR FREDERICKS: I thom;ht 1!r Darrow said that was agreed

6 •
that had been t estifi ed to.

7 MH. DARROW: No, I didn't say any such tlil.1ilng. He has also

8 said it might have been the grand jury proceedings; he-

9 said he didn't know when he heard it first.

10 THE COUHr: Now counsel is trying to see if he can fix

11 that.

"\Wlerl did he get knowledge of it; that he could not have

say he never made that statement, or do they know vhen

it 'lras sought to fix th at time when he got the money?

and one thing at another. '.\llat right have th~ got to

is an absolute error, your Honor, that this gentleman

should substitute his statements. The question is,

THE coum: yes.

was no suc h testimony.

hoord it. Are they the keepers of :Mr Franklin's mind,

in view of all the statements he made one way or the other,

is it any wonder that Franklin says one thing at one time

llR APP EL: Now, we take an exc epti on to hi s assuming,

about his remarks -- that there was no such testimony. It

:MR FREDERICKS: We have a right to show that this vJitness

never heard it and could not have heard it, that there
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1 UR FORD: We don' t c are a t bing about that; \'ha t we \'JaIlt

2 is .the vlitness' knowledge

3 MR DARROW: Th e wi tn ess has answere~?

4 UR APF:EL: Simply what knowl e ge has the ,m. tness got --

5 l~~R FORD: We are going to cssume the matter, and \ve are go-

6 •ing to assume that this witness said he never heard --

7 UR DARROW: You hare no right to msume it •.

8 lvffi FREDERICKS: Then we are mistaken and the mistake is

9 ours.

10 MR DARROVT: Th erecord does, not show that.

11 MR FREDERICKS : We are going to assume that. After

12 counsel has advised th e wi tness, and in a mild way, pro­

13 bably, suggested to him Yihat we weredriving at, we do not

14 care to pursue the matter any furth ere

15 },{R APPEL: we take an exception to that, and we assign the

16 statement of the District Attorney as absolutely unt rue.

171m. FREDERICKS: Vre learned it from thedefense.

18 UR AFIHL: We h8J'e been hmring t hat sort of an experience

19 . h ere for a long time. You never learned anything from th e

20 defens e.

21 :MR FREDERICKS: That is true.

THE COURI': Youa3sign thestatement as error?

Jm APPEL: yes, your Hono r.

THE COURr.: Now, gentlemen, vhat is the next question?

MR FREDERICKS: nOYT, 111' Wolf e, what time do you say you

took your car that morning, the 28th of Novenber?
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Are you giving that from custom or from memll7ry?

What time did you t aka the on e th e morning before?

Frcm custom •

8 o'clock.

I took the 8 o'clockAs a general ruleA

Only from custom? A only--

on what

About 8 o'clock.

•
Q

Q

Q

Q

A

A

A1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 car.
~..

9 Q You don't remember then J when you di d take it?

morning before that.

before that? A No.

v.hat car did you take? A Th e 8 0' clock.

J'JR ROGERS: The ,vi tn ess has not finished ~his answer.

Did you on th e morning before that,Upon your memory.

Q You don't remember taking it? A I didn't take it the

Q Is that memory or custom?· A That is memory.

Q That is memor.!, too? A yes.

Q Then, do you remember of tElking the car th e morning

the 28th is based on your custom and not on your memory J

is that the idea? A Upon my memory~

MR F8EDE .--;Aiic(your knowl edg e, y~;'·r testimony of

the fact that you took the 8 o'clock car on the moming of

THE COURr: Finish your answer.

A I took the 8 o'clock car ~ery morning •.
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•

1 Q You said a while ago you did? A I beg your pardon;

2 yon asked me the morning before. and you have' gone back

3 one more morning. and it is Sunday morning. and I didn't.
4 take the car on that morning; I didn't go to my office.

6 28th and the morning of t he 27th, so far.

5 Q

•
I am dealing with two momings. the morning of the

I am asking

7 you what time you took t he car on the morning of the 27th.

8 A 8 o'clock.

9 Q You testified to that from memory. or because of your

10 custom? A Well, I suppo se it is custom.
-.......... ----

11 Q You don,t remember anybody getting on that ca;!:' on the

12 morning of th e 2 rlth \vi th you. do you? A . Oh, yes.

13 Q on the moming of the 27th? A· Not specifically; I

14 rememb er a 1 arg e number of pe rsons get ting on the car.

15 Q Do you remember af any particular ones that got om

16 on the morning at the 27th? A Not particular ones, no.

17 Q How, on the morning of the 28th. do you remember anybo

18 that got on thecarwithyou that morning? A Withme?
~

of the car.

the car stopped? A yes.

Q. You s at on the rear 0 f th ecar out sid e? A yes.

Q. Sit '.vi th somebody or alone? A I sat on th e seat, I

Are you sure of that? A Yes.

.And you went in and took aseat? A Sat on the rearQ
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1 was alone, 'when I s at dO"JIl.

2 SOmebody c ante in and sat dovm wi th you? A Sat be-

3 side me, yes.

4 Q Do you know who that "Jas? A No.

5 Q. lian or warnan? A No.

6 Q DOntt remember 'Yhether it was a man or vroman? A No.

7 Q. And where did]fLr Darrow get on tret morning? ./,.

8 llR DARn.oW:::,get on or off, you say?

9 On. A SOmewhere in t.he vicini ty of th e viaduct,

10 n ear BOnnie Brae.

n Q. Do you know just where it VI as? A l{o.

12 Q. Your memory does not serve you that far? A I first

13 saw him there.

He '\'Jas already on ..,-hm you saw him; is t hat it?

He was on the car, climbing on the step; I was near

SecondA

A yes •

Second andA

He stood on the rear of the car.

A yes.

A yes.

".-"~'---''''-'----,~_._---~--..

V"hat di d he do? . A

And you got off at Second street?

Did you retain your seat all the yray in?
.---" ~...--~--~'.'~.~_ .. "-~.-._.. .

and Hill. _----------
---_.,--------~~--=~ .

the step.

Q And did you talk vii t h l!.r Darrow on the car that morn­

ir~? A No, just spoke to him.

Q
/-

Q.

Q. '-Ali-th e way in?
......._- ... " .-'

Q Until you ~ot off?

Q

Hill.-----------
Q VJh ere did youget off the morning before?
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Q

Q D:> you lmow what from memory or from custom? A Cus-
_----~-------....w ~•• __.

torn;-

Q You don,t rem~ber? A No.----_. - ..

Q ind you walked on down wi th Mr Darrow then. Did you

me et tlnybo o.y on th e wey do\V!l you kn e>l? A No •

•
Are you sure 0 f that? A Oh, pes sibly a c 8sual ec quain!-'

tancej I may have met --

Q But you don't remember

MR ROGERS: Let him finish his enswer.

TIm COURT: Finish your answer.

1JfR FREDERI CKS : He ba d fini sh ed it.

THE COURT: Have you finished your ansvler? I am asking

the witness if he has finished. Have you finished your

answer, l!rr Wolfe? A No sir.

THE COURT: Finish t he answer. A-- possibly a cas-

ual ~ quaintanc e, I know many peopl e in th e city.

1.fR FREDERICKS: Do you remember anybody you met? A No.
\

Q Do you knOYT \vhether anybody'l,i:\S following you 0 r not

that morning? A No.

Q You didn tt look arouni? A lTo.

Q And you got down to the Higgins BUilding, both went

up in the elwator together? A yes.

Q And ryent to your office first? A yes.

Q Took aff your hat? A yes.

Q Which did you take off first, your hat or your coat?

Just asking for your memory, it may seem trivial, 'but I
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am test ing your memo ry? A I dODJ, t rec all.

Q. ,You dOTl't recall? A No t sometimes I took off my hat

first t find som etimes my coat.

Q That is one thing you don't remember? A It depends

on circumstances t Mr Fredericks. I took off my hat
•

when I came into the court roomt but did not take off my

coat.

Q. You never thought of any of these thi}"\gs for eight·

months t never talk ed to anybody for six months --

lfR APFEL: That has been asked. over and OV' er again, and

your Honor sustained the objection.

THE COU Rr: Do 17!ou obj ect?

1m APF:BL: I obj ec t to it as being repeti tion, the sam e

questions •.
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•
Q, .And sat dOVJrl there and talked for 20 minutes. Did

l

(

and

We ~

IA NO;.Did anybody come up in the elevator vfith you?

And then you went into 1vTr DarroW's personal office,

Did you speak to arw of th en th at you remember of?

Walking :down the corridor.

Towards the el ev ator? A yes.

.And you n wer thought of that for six months?

What V,'as he doing th ere the last you saw of him?

No.

You went out tog eth er, and you went to your room?

anybody come in? A No.

Q, Then, somebody called M:r DarroW' on the telephone,

did he com e out first, or did you come out first? A.

Q

Q,

Q.

A

A

A

went out together.

did you? A yes sir •

Q

Q

Q.

UR APPEL: He has been asking that thing over and ov er

again, ~nd tlee \n tness h as not said that.

1m FREDERICKS: .All right.

MR ROGERS: Just a moment. NoW', that question has been

asked, and in the fom and in t.he manner end in the -say of

his asldng it, it is not intended, in view of the court's

previous ruling, sustaining the obj ection to similar

questions, that is not asked in good faith, and it is

fore misconduct, it is nothing but a comment upon the

1,fRMRRQW: I obj ect to that --
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timony in the line of a ques.tion.

l{R FREDERICKS: Assign it as misconduct.

TEE COURT: Do you a ssign it as misconduct?

IJfR ROGERS: I mve just done so, if your Honor pleases,

in the record.

TEt COURr: All right.

MR FREDERICKS: All right. This time you saVl :Mr Harring-

ton goil1g to San Francisco, ves before that, wasn't it?

A Yes.

Q That was in October. P~d he told you Darrow never

would allow any crooked work in th e case, did he; is that

right?

UR D ARROW: That is not the statement?

HR FREDERICKS: Is that the general Bubstance of it?

Can you answer the qu estion? There is no obj rotion.

A I don, t ]mow t hat he used th e phra s e tlc rooked wo rk" •

Q Vlhat did he use? A I don,t recall his exact language.

Q Well, VJaS that the substance 0 fit? A The v:ord "croo~

ed" was not the SUbstance of it.

Q "Square", how is that? A Uore like that.

Q. How did it come that youy.ere talking; that the ques-

tion as to whether Jlr Darrow was square or not, c ame up

discussion? A Pm. I allovJed to answer in detail?

Q Why, I have 8sked you the question. A All right.

HI' Harrington asked me why I had gon e to San Francis6'o,

aft er I had t old him it was rath er cg ain st my c onv eni enc
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•

the conversation on Ur Darrow.

It is

Obj ection' ClTerru.l Ed.
Ex:ception.
I don't understand the YJord "boost".

Harrington ViaS boosting 1/fr Darrow, wa nIt he, spealdng,

Then, at another time aftervlards, after the arrest

Q

Q

sio~ or opinion of the witness, anmI not cross-exanination.

of Bert Franklin, you had a talk wi th l~r Harrington in

which lftr Harrington said that he mm't believe Darrow had

anything to do with it, or ,,'lords to that effect. That

is correct, isn't it? A It is.

Well, he was boosting Darrow then, wasn't he?

to go. I told him that I was goin.~ beCS1se Mr Darrow had

requested me, 'after I had refused others. That brought

But how did the question of ur Darrow's honesty

the slang dictionar,y.

Q You a re a newspapennan and ithey know all dictionari

and he rather brought the conversation in in that manner.

pressed t:tat I vrent at the request of lIr Darrow, cmd spoke

in high terms of him, and that rath er I Ed up to the case,

come to b e discussed? A Ur Harrington s eemed rather im-

THE COURi':
1m RaGERe:; :
A' - . .;. :

:r.fR'ROGERS: That is oQjected to as calling for a conclu-

favorably of him?

MR APPEL: That is objected to --

MR DARHOW: He said~ "Spoke in high terms".

}.ffi FREDERICKS: Speaking favorably of him? A yes, speak­

ing favo rably of him.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



4306

1 If YO~l don't understand the vlord, h~ever, I will chang e

2 it. .He was speaking highly 0 f 1fr Darrow? A yes.

3 Q. And you didn,t susp ec t at t het tim e that he was in

4 the employ of the Erectors Association, when he was speak­

5 ing so highly of Ur Darrow?

6 •JA.:R APPEL: We obj ect to t bat •.

15 correct? A yes. '-- .. ~_~.dAA'"-' _ .. -=-,'

COurt ~dll now adjourn until 10

You knew },{r Harrington an d you kn ell ],{r

That is not cross- examination.

And you 1m eJV they were both v.orking on the S'8llle cause, I

You 1m e.v they were working in s eperate d apartments,

eV'idenc e?

o'clock tomorrow morning.)

(.Jury romonlshed.)

didn't you; one was on the jury and the other \vas on th e

THE COURi': The question is withdravm. We Vlill now adjourn~

Q.

l,TR FREDERICKS: I think that is correct.

M1R APFEL:

7 }.fR FREDERICKS: And employed for the purpose of getting

8 Darrow?

9 I,m APPEL: We obj ect to that, your Honor, 00 to what this

10 man suspected; it is not cross-examination; immaterial.

11 THE COU1m': Obj ection sustained.

13 Harrington and Mr Franklin were both in th e employ of the

14 defense, and you s aw them togeth er often up there, is that

16 Q.

12 UR FREDERICKS:
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